Orange Southwest Unified Union School District

(Orange Southwest School District) OSSD
Regular Board Meeting on Wednesday -- December 14, 2022
Randolph Elementary School

6:00 p.m.
It Related Board Poli Presenter | L€ | Action(s)
em elated Board Policy Allotted
I ||Opening:
6:00
Board Attendance; Ensuring a Quorum GP 4.2 Board Job Description Kaplan 5 min
Meeting Purpose: Ownership linkage planning and Financial Planning
Budgeting in Relation to Ends Accomplishment
II ||Board Education and Ownership Linkage
6:05
Public comment (Recognize e-communications to the the Board) GP 4.2.1 Board Job Description Kaplan Listen Only
Board welcomes comment but is not able to take any action
Comments limited to three minutes per speaker
Review Annual Report to Voters GP 4.2.1 Board Job Description Kaplan 5 mins Update
Review Board Member Terms (list enclosed) Kaplan 5 mins Review
Review & Adopt Complaint Procedure in light of legal counsel review GP 4.2.1 Board Job Description Kaplan Review/Adopt
(enclosed)
Ownership Linkage Plan Committee update on Portrait of Grad etc. GP 4.2.1 Board Job Description Evans 15 mins | Listen/Questions
I ||Monitoring: Organization
6:30
Review EL Reports 2.4 & 2.5 (enclosed) B-MD 3.4 Monitoring Superintendent Millington | 5 mins Listen
Policy 2.4 Financial Planning & Budgeting Performance
Policy 2.5 Emergency Superintendent Succession
Quarterly Facilities Monitoring Report (enclosed with agenda) EL 2.6 Asset Protection Millington | 15mins Listen
Budget Overview in Relation to Ends EL 2.4 Financial Planning and Budgettil Millington | 30 mins | Listen/Questions
1V ||Monitoring: Board
7:20
Assess Board's compliance with Board Governance Policy 4.5 (enclosed) |GP 4.1.6 Governing Style HBoard Memberd 15 min | Evaluate/Decide
Select area of improvement/leader/when lo reassess
V ||Policy Decisions: District Governance
7:35
Required State Policies: 1st Reading (enclosed with agenda) EL 2.0 Global Executive Constraint Millington | 2 mins Listen
VI ||Advocaey
7:37
Report on VSBA Annual Meeting & Conference GP 4.1.4 Governing Style Lawler/Kaplan | 10 mins Listen
Plan Meeting with Legislators GP Board Job Description 4.2.5 Evans 15 mins| Listen/Discuss
Decide
VII ||Consent Agenda
8:02
Approve minutes from regular board meeting on 11/9/2022 (enclosed)  |GP 4.2 Board J ob Description Kaplan 5 min Vote
Approve minutes from special board meeting on 11/18/2022 (enclosed)
Approve corrected construction estimate (enclosed with agenda) GP 4.2.7 Board Job Description
Approve RAVEN Budget (enclosed with agenda) EL 2.4 Financial Planning & Budgeting|
Approval of OSSD Facilities Reserve Funds for heating system repairs
at RUHS & RTCC (see enclosed form)
VIII | |Other
8:07
Update Negotiations with Unions GP 4.2.10 Board Job Description Millington 2 mins Listen
IX ||Clesing
8:09
Superintendent's Report (enclosed) Millington | 5 mins Listen
Principals' & Director Reports (newsletter links sent out separately)
Financial Report (enclosed)
Action Items Recap GP 4.4.2.2 Chair's Role Kaplan 4 min Review
Adjournment
X ||Executive Session: If Needed
8:18
Future Meetings
Agenda Planning Meeting: Tuesday January 3, 2023 @ RES Library 5:15 p.m.
6:00 p.m.

0SSD Regular Meeting: Wednesday, January 11, 2023 @ Brookfield Elelmentary School




0SSD School Board Members

Anne Kaplan, Chair
Katja Evans, Vice Chair
Hannah Arias

Rachel Gaidys

Megan Sault

Chelsea Sprague, Clerk
Sarah Haupt

Samuel Hooper

Term 2025
Term 2023
Term 2023
Term 2024
Term 2024
Term 2024
Term 2025
Term 2023



ORANGE SOUTHWEST SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD PROCEDURE FOR HEARING COMPLAINTS

The Orange Southwest School District Board recognizes that it is important to have a
structure in place to formally respond to complaints from staff, parents, students, and/or
community members. Below you will find the steps that the OSSD Board expects
people to follow.

Step 1: Complainants are to first bring complaints to the individual about whom they
have a complaint.

Step 2: If the problem can not be resolved with the individual concerned, it should be
brought to the attention of their immediate supervisor or administrator. The complaint
should be in writing stating the issue and supporting facts. The individual about whom
there is a complaint, shall be given the opportunity for explanation, comment, and
presentation of the facts as they see them.

Step 3: If the issue is not resolved by the involvement of the immediate supervisor or
administrator, the complainant may request that the next level up in the
administration/management review the decision that was made regarding the complaint.
Step 4: In the event that the complainant is not satisfied with the review of the decision
regarding the complaint, the complainant may request in writing to the Superintendent
for their review of the decision regarding the complaint.

Step 5: If after completing the above steps, the complainant feels the complaint was not
treated in @ manner consistent with procedures/policies or that the Superintendent did
not act in compliance with procedures/policies, they may request in writing to the Board
Chair a review of the Superintendent's decision at the next regularly scheduled meeting
of the Board. The Board shall conduct a review on the record and the standard of
review shall be whether the Superintendent’s decision regarding the complaint
constitutes an abuse of discretion. The Board shall conduct such meetings in
accordance with Board procedures and shall render a decision. Board decisions are
final.

Board Procedures for Hearing Complaints:

Step 1: The Board Chair confirms the complainant followed procedure steps 1-5 above.
Step 2: The hearing is placed on the warned agenda and copies of the written
complaint are distributed to the Board.

Step 3: At the proper time, the chair recognizes the complainant and asks for a verbal
summary of how their complaint was not treated in a manner consistent with
procedures/policies or how the Superintendent did not act in compliance with
procedures/policies.



Step 4: Board members are then invited by the chair to ask clarifying questions of the
complainant. Board members may also ask clarifying questions regarding policy or
procedures. Board members should refrain from giving opinions.

Step 5: The chair then recognizes the Superintendent and asks for a verbal summary
response to the complainant’s allegations, with reference to relevant policies and
procedures.

Step 6: Board members are then invited by the chair to ask clarifying questions of the
Superintendent. Board members may also ask clarifying questions regarding policies or
procedures. Board members should refrain from giving opinions.

Step 7: The Board makes a decision. The Board’s decision will be based on its review
on the record and the standard of review shall be whether the Superintendent’s decision
regarding the complaint constitutes an abuse of discretion. Board decisions are final.
The Board sends a written response to the complainant informing them of the Board'’s

decision.



MONITORING REPORT

POLICY 2.4: FINANCIAL PLANNING & BUDGETING

I certify the information contained in this report is true and that any interpretations are
soundly based upon available evidence.

.-fi/?n _/2/1;7_/2 Z.

Superintend‘ t Date

The Superintendent shall not cause or allow financial planning for any fiscal year or the
remaining part of any fiscal year to deviate materially from the board's Ends priorities,
risk financial jeopardy, or fail to be derived from a multiyear plan.

Further, without limiting the scope of the foregoing by this enumeration, there will be no

financial plans that:

1. Riskincurring those situations or conditions described as unacceptable in
the board policy "Financial Condition and Activities"

2. Omit credible projection of revenues and expenses, separation of capital
and operational items, cash flow, and disclosure of planning assumptions

3. Provide less for board prerogatives during the year than is set forth in the
Governance Investment Policy

4. Omitdisclosure of anticipated impact(s) of proposed budget.

Policy Wording: The Superintendent shall not cause or allow financial planning for any
Jiscal year or the remaining part of any fiscal year to deviate materially from the board's
ENDS priorities, risk financial jeopardy, or fail to be derived from a multiyear plan.

Interpretation: I interpret the intent of the overall policy to mean that the use of district
funds shall be consciously directed towards achieving the board's ENDS and that those
funds will be safeguarded through proper fiscal management. Lastly, I interpret
compliance with the overall policy to mean that each enumerated provision is in

compliance.

Ratiopale: An organization that expects to meet the goals it sets for itself can only do so
when it strategically spends resources to meet those Ends. Sound fiscal management
practices help to ensure that money that could be leveraged towards achieving the Ends is
not lost due to incompetence or inefficiency. The primary purpose of "financial planning

Updated: December 2022



and budgeting" is to ensure that the pecessary resources are available to the organization
to use to meet its goals.

Evidence: The changes in resource allocations since FY2021 provides evidence of
strategic shifts designed to advance the achievement of the School Board's Ends despite
the impact of the ongoing COVID pandemic. Over the past two years, district budgeting
priorities have shifted to focus on three broad areas: 1) maintaining a safe and healthy
environment, 2) providing for emotional and behavioral support, and 3) creating structures that
allow for leaming recovery and acceleration. In addition to the regular budget process, the
district has applied for and received over six million dollars in grants to support the Ends

through this work.
Safe and Healthy Schools

The district’s efforts to create a school environment in which students and staff can physically
exist safely despite the pandemic have been ongoing and have been supported by several

grants:

o Installation of small particulate filtration systems designed to remove the droplets that
carry the coronavirus — both within the forced air ventilation systems and through
stand alone filtration units it every classroom. This includes sensor upgrades and an
enhanced control system to regulate and balance air flow.

e Upgraded ventilation fans to counterbalance the increased pressure cansed by the
filtration systems.

* Installation of negative pressure air systems in each of the nurses’ offices.

s Purchase of new classroom furniture to support increased distancing.

¢ Construction of outdoor classroom spaces at each of the district’s schools to support
increased distancing.

¢ Ensuring an adequate supply of masks, hand sanitizer, and cleaning and disinfecting
supplies.

e Providing for additional nursing and health clerical staff as well as additional
custodial staff.

e Providing for COVID testing and mitigation services as well as the associated staff
training,

e Providing universal free meals while school is in session and during vacations and
closures.

e Providing PA systems that allow teachers who are wearing masks to be heard by
socially distanced classes.

Currently, the district is pursuing HVAC grants to fully air condition Brookfield and Braintree in
order to prevent mold outbreaks during the warm, humid months.

Providing a safe and healthy environment despite the pandemic promotes the Board’s Ends by
ensuring students are here at school and available to learn.

Updated: December 2022



Emotional and Behavioral Support

The pandemic added significant stress to the emotional health of students and their families due
to social isolation, anxiety, increased food and monetary insecurity, and the magnification these
factors had on incidents of child abuse. Such factors created a range of new trauma-based and
aggressive behaviors not experienced previously by schools that need to be addressed and
mitigated if students are going to learn effectively and meet the Board’s Ends. By shifting
regular budget resources and acquiring grants, the district was able to serve these needs:

e Hiring of additional staff to support emotional and behavioral health including guidance
counselors, adjustment counselors, social workers, and behavioral interventionists.

¢ The purchase and implementation of an SEL program, Leader and Me, at the elementary
level.

¢ Providing students with research based sensory tools to aid is self-regulation and
maintaining a state of mind that is conducive to learning.

s Holding meetings designed to train parents on how to support the district’s work on
executive functioning, self-control, and self-regulation.

¢ Providing funding for outside consultants to support staff on the use of enhanced
accommodations and differentiated learning to best support the most difficult student
cases.

Through this work, funding was strategically and consciously directed towards supporting the
Board’s Ends by ensuring students were available for learning.

Learning Recovery and Acceleration

Educational losses, especially in terms of the Board’s Foundational Knowledge Ends were
experienced due to remote learning, absences due to illness, school closures, and classroom level
quarantines. The district shifted both regular budget resources as well as leveraged grants to
mitigate the impact of the pandemic on these specific Ends:

e Increased internet connectively both at school and in the homes of students with limited
access.

s Replaced all SMART Boards with Clear Touch technology to take advantage of the
skills acquired by the staff during remote session that promote enhanced in person
instruction.

e Delivering summer programming (K-12) for the purpose of increasing socialization
skills and providing for academic recovery. This included district supplied
transportation.

e Providing after school programming to extend time on learning for academic recovery.

e Increased staffing to provide full day pre-school to reverse lost socialization due to
isolation during the pandemic. Further, to increase academic readiness for elementary
school.

¢ Hiring academic interventionists to provide extended time on learning opportunities
during the school day for students in need.

» Hiring of an early education speech and language pathologist to address minor needs
Updated: December 2022



early to prevent them from expanding into more severe issues over time,

¢ Delivered staff training in the STERN Center’s Lead to Read program in order to
improve losses to basic literacy.

o Employment of two STEM teachers (K-12) who also serve as integration specialists to
increase students’ foundational knowledge in science and to improve their critical
thinking skills.

¢ Purchase and implementation of the Carnegie Math Program across grades 6-12 and a
reinvestment in Bridges Math (PK-5) to increase and accelerate the acquisition of
foundational knowledge in mathematics.

o Purchase and implementation of Geodes and Wit and Wisdom to increase student
literacy and foundational knowledge across all disciplines.

Many of these initiatives were already underway as means to achieve the Board’s Ends
priorities, but their implementation has been altered to meet the new demands posed by COVID.

As further evidence, especially of multiyear planning, the following documents are available:

¢ OSSD Public Plan for ESSER Spending — which includes amounts spent in each
category (safe and healthy schools, emotional and behavioral support, learning recovery
and acceleration) through October of this year.

s The Consolidated Federal Programs Data Inventory.
e The OSSD Continuous Improvement Plan

I report compliance on the totality of EL 2.4,

Provision# 1: Risk incurring those situations or conditions described as unacceptable in the
board policy "Financial Condition and Activities"

Interpretation: Iinterpret this to mean...

+ That available funds within the most recent budget shall not be exceeded.
+ That the district’s bills (liabilities) will be paid in a timely fashion.

+ That monies owed to the district are collected in a timely fashion.

+ That unexpected revenues are used to support the district's ends.

Rationale; The limitations laid out in Policy 2.3 (Financial Conditions and Activities) are
focused on ensuring that the OSSD is practicing basic and appropriate financial
stewardship. These provisions ensure that the organization is meeting its financial
obligations in a timely manner and ensures that spending is centered on meeting the Board's

Ends.

Updated: December 2022



Evidence: The district’s financial statements from fiscal year 2023 that are shared with
the Board on a monthly basis show compliance with the interpretation of this provision as
does the yearly financial audit performed by Fothergill, Segale & Valley.

There were two non-critical matters noted by the auditors last year:

The first was that the extracurricular accounts (RUHS, RTCC) are managed using
QuickBooks as opposed to being handled under the same financial software system we
use for the rest of the district. This separation makes monitoring difficult but not
impossible. These accounts were not combined in the past because our ancient software
system will not support it. We have been waiting for the transition to the new financial
software mandated by the state which will allow the consolidation of these accounts.
Problems with the State's chosen software has delayed this transition since 2019. The
state is in the final process of deciding how to proceed given the failures of the software
package it chose and the contract it entered with the company.

Given that after five years of waiting, we still have no clarity from the state on how it is
moving forward we have invested in purchasing the newest version of the Tyler
Financial Software which will not only allow the district to move to a paperless process
(more secure and less costly), it will also provide the module needed to include the
extracurricular accounts. The software was purchased in the summer of 2022 and
transition will begin in January of 2023.

The second was adopting a Fund Balance Reporting policy that includes a method for
classifying fund balances. Fund Balance Policies help to define the constraints imposed upon
the use of financial resources especially when there is a deficit. A recommended policy if set

for first reading on 12/14/22.

Since neither of these Auditor recommendations are substantiative, merely
recommendations, I report compliance on this provision

Provision # 2: Omit credible projection of revenues and expenses, separation of capital
and operational items, cash flow, and disclosure of planning assumptions

Interpretation: I interpret this to mean that:

« Estimates of revenues and expenses used to create the yearly budget are reasonable

and evidence based.

» Financial statements show enough detail to separate what is required to maintain
the daily operation of the district in pursuit of the Board’s Ends from individual
projects that require significant investment (building projects, etc.).

Rationale: In order to provide adequate and dependable funding in support of the

board's ENDS, the district budget must be created using evidenced-based assumptions
about future revenues and expenses. Further, to provide evidence that district priorities

Updated: December 2022



are reflected in financial decisions, the budget creation process must explicitly state the
purpose of any changes made to the budget from one fiscal year to the next.

Evidence: The budget planning process relies heavily on formulas and forecasts supplied
by the Vermont Agency of Education (AOE) to determine the amount of state and federal
assistance the district will receive. Local data must be analyzed in light of the state’s
formulas and forecasts to provide credible estimates of both revenues and expenses that
are then used to create the budget. The district therefore generates several different data
sets for this analysis that allow the district to make funding decisions during budget
creation, some examples include the following:

» Since the majority of our state assistance is dependent upon our average
daily membership (ADM — basically the number of students enrolled in the
OSSD), we track enrollments across a three-to-five-year time span to predict
future changes in state assistance in order to plan around any projected
shortfalls. The below chart does not include pre-school students because
state aid for preschool students is approximately 1/5 of that provided for
grades K-12.

District Enrollment . ;714354 2269
870

860 2
850

840 .

830

820

810

800 . .

790
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Updated: December 2022



¢ Pre-School Enrollment.

Pre School Enrollment Age 3 and 4

70
y =-2.2x + 4499.3

€0

50
40
30
20
10

0. .
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

+ Shifting trends in the number of students needing special services.

% of OSSD Population Served by IEP

21.20%
=-0.0039x + 7.9984

21.00% g
20.80% 2

20.60%

20.40%

20.20%

20.00% . .
19.80%

19.60%

19.40%

19.20%

19.00%
2018 2018 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Updated: December 2022



« Salary and benefits changes dictated by local contacts and master agreements.

+ Programming changes needed to address local pressures (e.g., COVID) that are
interfering with the district's ability to meet its Ends.

- Regulatory changes that require mandatory implementation such as the state
negotiated health insurance benefits and Act 173 (special education funding).

In cases where solid information does not exist to predict with fair certainty a revenue or
expense, we use historic data to make an informed estimate.

Changes to the budget from year-to-year are explained during the budget
presentations to the Board and community. These explicitly explain the rationale for
the changes and touch on how they support the Board’s overall Ends.

In terms of separating operational from capital expenses, the monthly financial reports
provide evidence of this; further, all true capital expenses come from the reserve funds
which require a direct and public vote of the Board to approve.

I report compliance.

Provision # 3: Provide less for board prerogatives during the year than is set forth in the
Governance Investment Policy

Interpretation: I interpret this to mean the approved budget will contain adequate
funding to support the board's reasonable interpretation of the Governance Process

Policy 4.7.

Rationale: The intent of this limitation is to ensure that the board, "invests in its own
governance capacity," to ensure that it does not interfere with the attainment of the Ends

through poor governance practices.

Evidence: During FY 2023 the Board allocated $10,000 for its own purposes. This was
adequate to support the Board's own training initiatives

I report compliance.

Provision# 4: Omit disclosure of anticipated impact(s) on proposed and adopted
budgets

Interpretation: I interpret this to mean that the superintendent will keep the board
informed of all significant changes in the financial landscape that could or will affect

either the budget planning process or the current budget.

Rationale: Providing and examining this type of information as soon as it is available
allows for a thoughtful and informed response that may serve to mitigate any negative
effects these changes may have on the district or its ability to meet its Ends. Further,
should the changes be beneficial, advanced notice allows the district time to seek
community input and to channel their impact towards meeting the Ends.

Updated: December 2022



Evidence: The board has been kept current on financial changes, forecasts, and pressures
through informational emails, superintendent's reports, the submission of monthly
financial statements, and direct discussions.

¢ From the September 2021 Superintendent’s Report:

o ...insurers no longer are compelled to provide liability coverage for claims based
on communicable diseases including COVID. This means that anyone who
believes they contracted COVID in district can not only sue the district for
damages, but that there is no insurance available anymore that would cover the
cost of the district’s legal defense or damages if any were awarded — those costs
and awards would come directly from the district budget. Putting the two
developments together leads to a potentially calamity — kids must be in school,
full-time, in-person, regardless of the state of COVID in a school or community,
and we can now be sued for exposing folks to COVID - all while being deprived
of liability msurance that would protect us somewhat from this confluence of
poorly thought policy. Our only defense against this new liability is strict
adherence to all guidance related to COVID mitigation, and given the scarcity of
guidance, that alone may not be enough. It would be pertinent to consider
additional protocols in excess of the current guidance to keep our students and
staff safe.

¢ From the October 2021 Superintendent’s Report:

o Vermont Act 173 was put into law during the legislative session of 2018. It’s
stated goal was to enhance the equity of service provided to students who require
support by changing how special education is currently funded and allowing
greater flexibility in the use of those funds. The law, based on a study by UVM,
calls for a transition from the current reimbursement model used to fund special
education to a census block grant model.

o Under the current model, districts are reimbursed by the State at varying
percentages depending upon the cost of the services provided to special
education students. Under the new model, districts will receive a block style
grant (i.c., lump sum of money), the amount of which is dependent upon the total
number of students attending the district (three-year average). One immediate
concern about the transition is what happens when multiple students with severe
needs move into a district mid-year. Under the old system, the impact was small
because of the reimbursement that would come from the state. Under the new
model, no new funding will come to support the new students despite an already
set budget. In anticipation of this scenario, the superintendent advised for the
creation of a special education reserve fund to cover such unanticipated costs;
that reserve fund is currently in place with a moderate balance.

e The 10.7.22 Budget Parameters Summary is included as further evidence.

I report compliance.

Updated: December 2022



MONITORING REPORT

POLICY 2.5: EMERGENCY SUPERINTENDENT SUCCESSION

I certify the information contained in this report is true and that any interpretations are
soundly based upon available evidence.

/

v_h,[ _32// ?*/?L
§1‘1Lp\erintenp ent Date

To protect the District from the sudden loss of Superintendent services, the
Superintendent shall not permit the administrative cabinet to be unprepared to take over
with reasonable proficiency until a successor is found.

Interpretation

I interpret this to mean that the district will hire and maintain an assistant superintendent
who can be designated and authorized to assume the full decision-making and signing
authority of the superintendent in the event of absence or incapacitation. Further, that
this designee will be cross trained in the full duties of the superintendency and will be
kept sufficiently informed as to current matters and initiatives to effectively assume the
superintendent’s role with minimal downtime.

Rationale:

Ensuring that the district continues to achieve its ENDS on behalf of its students and the
communities it serves requires the creation of contingencies that trigger when an
unexpected loss occurs. Since the district relies on its staff to carry out its work, it is vital
to engage in cross training efforts to ensure that the sudden absence of any individual's
knowledge and skills does not destroy organizational integrity and functionality.

Aside from keeping the district operating smoothly during an unexpected transition,
succession planning builds capacity and expertise within the administrative team that
otherwise would not exist. Over the course of time, the additional training and
communication serves to create a strong common vision and shared culture that promotes
consistency, a sense of purpose, and an elevated sense of collegiality.

Updated: December 2022



Evidence:

As of 2022-23, the district has hired and maintains an assistant superintendent who
actively participates in all meetings and work related to the superintendency for the
purposes of cross training and to remain informed of the district’s current needs and
priorities. This it to ensure a smooth transition should temporary or permanent
succession be necessary.

The superintendent’s authority is primarily signatory in nature and as such would require
the action of the Board to transfer this power to a delegate. To ensure the Board
understands it role in this process, the procedure for temporarily delegating the
superintendent’s authority is outlined below as part of the evidence showing compliance

with this policy.
Procedure for Temporarily Delegating the Superintendent’s Authority

This procedure should be followed in such cases where a superintendent is unable to
perform his/her responsibilities. This may occur in a transition period between
superintendents or for other reasons such as accident or illness. Under these
circumstances, that authority temporarily may be delegated by the OSSD board to
another licensed administrator within the district using the following process:

1. The OSSD Board should formally take action to temporarily delegate the
superintendent’s signatory authority to another licensed administrator within the
district. This delegation may be general or limited to specific types of documents.

2. The current superintendent or chair of the OSSD board should submit notification via
email to the secretary of education outlining the name and license type of the
individual the board wishes to designate as the interim signatory authority for the
district, the scope of that authority, and the start and end date of that authonty.

3. The secretary will ensure relevant Agency of Education (AOE) divisions and teams
are notified of the change, and that AOE’s Grants Management System (GMS) is
updated accordingly.

4. When the temporary signatory authority designation is no longer needed or if it needs
to be extended beyond the original request, the OSSD board chair or superintendent
should email the secretary of education notification of the change. The secretary will
follow the same process as item three (3) above in informing relevant parties within
the AOE.

In addition, the administrative cabinet meets regularly the second and fourth Wednesdays
of every month to discuss all matters affecting the district, which not only provides a forum
for their input and guidance, but also ensures they remain current in the state of the district,
its needs, and initiatives. The cabinet also meets (strategic planning) once to twice a year to
analyze the current state of the district and to create and/or update school and continuous
improvement plans in order to address any deficiencies relative to the Ends. These

Updated: December 2022



meetings ensure that should both the superintendent and assistant superintendent be
incapacitated; a member of the cabinet would be adequately prepared for temporary
succession.

I report compliance.

Evidence Examples

¢ Copies of cabinet meetings and materials.
» Copy of the current OSSD Continuous Improvement Plan (CIP).

Updated: December 2022



paJlaplo ‘aay Jo |EJ0] 0} $S480.4-u| 000°0€S leoyuef aadwy Joenuod S3YS ||Y 4
Aem uo omy aney am - yoes ¥STS JJueusjulew pue |enualod Jusplode pue Joqe|
Suppnpas saujyzew Jooy Jo aseyaind panuguo)
pauue|d 000°0€S uoljeaouual Alajes pue uonez||Lus) ‘uonesay speld €
U3y
pauueid duined g 4
ajes 1nq pady pauue|d 000°0tS ‘M3U JO aseydind pue jeacwss punoldield S3Y €
piq |12210993/p1q 1o} pauueld 00059% aalL sJojelauad dn-ydeq Jo uole||eIsu] pue aseyding S3Y 4
elep 183 03 AuowueH yum Sugasiy
JNOES 'suc pauue|d 000°0€S aat UORLZIUOCIYIUAS o) 4
S| 3UOJe XI0}I ‘SUOHEPUSIWOIA] nepuswwodal }0|2 apnpoul pue Wa)sAs vd Jieday J14/sHNY
JOPUDA BUIMIIAS) - 150D JuBILIUSIS Suimalaay
*3502 JuesyIusis
ueldwo) gIA0D ssau801d-u| 000°00SS (1N ‘uonieaouas o T
10N ‘pade|day SuneaH ‘uone)quan ueayiudis spaau Sulpjing 2IWO 4SSO asso
‘OYAH ‘W13u0) solesqy
pauueld uayo1 ul pooy uoissaiddns a4 Nyg T
pauueld 000°LTS SIDABS ASUWYD Jieday Asuwiy) 13jlog s34 T
PIdUIWILLOD SBY JJOM $5313044-u) 000'SES QgL WOooJ 3WN}S0) :Wlolpny 0} dpesddn SHNY T
‘Auond y3iy e Jou Inq Asessadau pauueld 000°007S wooy ysiom ul Buljiad ‘a3 01 YsAua) SHNY F4
uawoe|das Bupjew aseuns ‘s1ayoea|g ‘Juawaae|day Loold asnoH piald
MO[9q p3a|eas st a8wep J31em
pauueld juead/sapeiSdn aun uayduy SHNY 1
sauly Sunesy Jo suoipuod ssa180.44-uy doy|iH Juawadejdal MH ausawoq SHNY T
Yy} Jo asnedaq pafoid |leuoippy ‘Auouuiey ‘Yo LA
ssaidoud-u] 00000€S doyjiH aJnjle) wsAs 1eay SHNY T
‘AuowireH ‘Yas LA
$59U80.4d-u] 000°SS uo1as sdwnq paads SHNY T
e/v/TT SLE'PTS 219|dwo) 00SVTS suopestunwwo) W'Y Solpey [euoppy asso T
pauueld 000vES assaunafe s|iels Asearid woos 133007 SHNY T
/vt 00S°0TS Addwo) 000°0TS o1daas/OHY ooy woouyieq shog 014 1
*31ep uels uo Suniep 9)e|dwo) 000°6S s1380Y gM *aseds Joopino 148 T
N-34d Y1 [SAIT 0] JOIBARINT UE L3IM JIRIUOD)
“|40M SIY] JO SphjjuBews TZ/OT/TT 00Z9LS 9|dwo) assaunafe] ‘Auouwey SIIYO S9SN eAouudY SHNY 4
ay3 uaAig aaeds aunua ajeAouUal
0} 35U3S sew ) - (uouenerxa
a1inbai ||1m) pasejdas aq
01 Spaau Jooy ay3 Japun Suiquinid
Fuis|qe) uo Sunem $5313044-u) IZLS 10Y7 35414 S0 |euoyIppe Z ‘30T Ul 3UoYd MIN SHNY T

S3I0N

sjediul
uoydadsu)

SETNEREN]
a19|dwo) aleg

1507 |euly

S1ewnsy

JOpUaA

uondudsaq

suipling

ELE)



$S9J48014-u|

9p0d Aouednddo 33e(OIA [|IM XasiUn [[BIS
2|3uis 03 SWooIYIeq |[E SUIBAUOD JI BulWIAIRQ

SHNY

uonesysaAu| Japun

pauue|d

*Buim [ooyDs ajppiw palealpap e poddns
01 swooJyieq 01 3deq 61 pue LTZ HaAUO)

SHNY

ssau8044-u|

*(119S [1im udaey) ASojouyday :Bujuueld sieisdn

uaney

pauueld

WaysAg adueyaxg Jiy J00pINQ J0 uohen|ly Iy

uaney

pauueld

punos
uapesq 01 Aem 159g N0 NS4 :sapyeq punos

uaAey

Suimesq/sonewayds uo Sunep

§531804d-U]

yoi
3A0WRI ‘ulelunoy Jajem aoejdal ‘pieoqliewss
e j|e3sul ‘s|oo) anewsaud Joj s39|3n0 Jle Z ppe
‘ANd113991 Slepdn iomianp Sul|ia2 aoejdal
‘saj1) Bul1192 SACWIRI - SBPRI| UOKINIISUOT

201y

ssa480.4d-4|

8ulpuad smyonD

*sajqe) ‘Suny3|| ‘Buniad - euslae)

SHNY

(S)e

pauue|d

guipuad sa0np

‘'SMOpUIM
OV ‘siazaaly ul yjem mau ‘Sunys) ‘(panmad)
aul) Buinas ‘ Suljiad ‘sjiem ‘s1aaney HuIs
Aeg om1 “yuis Aeq @31y3 ‘(9) suaaQ Uswess

SHNY

(T

pauueld

Sujpuad s0nD

‘aUOpPaJ S||em pue 3uia) oleiadiyey
‘JUaA pooH ‘Sujuopipuo) Jiy juswade|dal
100}4 1915009 J3lem J0H Jaysemysiq
‘juis Aeq sa.1y3 adejdsy ‘syusuodwiod
poom aaowal 03 auf Suialas aaejday

PlRYRo0Ig

[C214

pauueld

8ujpuad sa10nD

oMY
10} dwing 1eaH 19]00) Y|IIAl ‘S||BA pue Suijia)
‘Bunioo)4 aoejday uolelaSuyeY ddejday -au)
BUIAJDS WO POOOM DAOWIY '1DIS00( JajEM
104 YHm Jaysemysiq ‘@8uey 10) U PEaYIaAQ

2aJulelg

(e)e

pauueld

BaJE )-2.d 2y} u} @213 Suiquip
auid ay3 Japun sdiys poom Jo JaAe| B ppy

1dg

Ajuouq Jawwng doj

pauueld

8ujpuad sa30np

Qdl

(sauawaja Suneay) sulj Buiaias Uaysemysip
‘{(auedouid} 12150049 193EM JOY ‘MO|y Jadoad
Po8U sUIBJp ‘BA0IS ‘S13INE} ‘SUSAQC (|9poLWal)
919]dwod :100[4 uayouy padeweq Jieday

S

(t

*pig 03 InQ 08 0} JuswWwInels
}OAA Jo 3dods J0) Sugiep

910N

s|eLiu| SETYERET
uondadsuj 219jdwo] ajeq

150 |ely

ssal8oud u|

sniels

000‘0ETS

Fewns3

‘paulwWIRIRp
3¢ 0} JO1OBIUOD 1983BIp
llam pue SuliaauiSug
j@8I) JBNO
JOPUSA

“JuawAjeqe
wnipes /walsAs JRoWSQ /|jam Mau e |jejsu)

dd




euaq pinom ‘olqnd [eisusb ay; Jo Jequusw e se
}SeJolul S Jequiswl pieoq 8y} wody paysinbuisip
Se ‘s)salslul 81eAld s aquisl pieoq

B USyMm UOlIBN)S B Suesw ,JSa1ajul JO J0Ijju0),,
*1S8J91ul JO S)OIjuoD Jo adueteadde ay; sk [jem

SE ]S8J9)U| JO S]OI|JUOD PIOAE 0} Siaquusw pieog
looyos |fe Jo Ainp [ebe| pue [edlyie 8y} st} 2

‘sueIpJBeNnL) IO Sjuaied

Sk s)sassjul jeuosiad Aue uo ‘suoneziuebio

Joy1o ‘yeis 01 sanjeho] Aq paloluooun ‘diysieumo
ay) 0} Ajjeko| e1ensuOWIBP ISNW SIeqWBA " |

"sisquisw pieoq se Bupoe uaym

wnioosp ajeldolidde pue Aytoyine Jo asn sadoud
Buipnioul ‘}onpuod |nme| pue ‘aylissaulsng ‘[eoiyje
0] SJaquidw S}l PUe J|as)i SHWWOD pieoq ay |

asuodsal Jnok Kaijod ayj jo wey
Moddns o) sajdwexa aanjejuasaidal oyioadg | siyy yum Apusysisuod Buipiopp Ao1j0d
pojoe am aAeH

JaAaU ‘awl) ay) Jo swos ‘dwll} 3y} Jo Jsowl ‘shemie :sbupey asuewopad
ZeivLizL pejeidwo) ajeq

22 Ad :pasojiuow Bulaq pouad awi
3I9NpU0) JO 9p0H SISqUIB| pleoq G p JdquinN Aoljod

SOI91|0d SS990.d 92URLLIBAOS) JO UOHIBN|EAT-}|9S pieog 104 J0oYSHIOM



Jo ay ‘Aatjod siyi 1o me| 8181S Ul peulep SB }saJs)ul
4O 1OI)JUOD B U] JUSLUSA|OAUI JO SIEME SOWIOD8]
Jaquisw pJeod e USUAA SIo1juo) Buiploay

‘uolisanb auy} Jo sapis ||e Jo uolejussaid
e} e ueyy Jayjo Buiyihue AQ psousnjiul
aq ued anss| Aue uo uonisod Jay Jo
siy ey} uoissaidwi sy} aAes| 01 papusiul
Buiyou op |Im siequuswl pieog '3
‘pieog
a2y} aJojaq siapew uo suonsod Jenolued
Bunyey Joj uinjai Ul anjea Jo Buiyifue
1deooe jou |Im siaquisw pieoq
'siopoddns 40 spusLy ‘siequisw Ajiwey Jo
S1S9Jalul [BIOUBUL BY} JO S}S8IL)UI [BIOUBLIL
jeuos.ad ajowoud Auresun o3 pspusiul
Jeuuew Aue u| pJjeog sy} uo uoisod
Jay JO SIy 8sn 10U ||Im siaquisw pJeog "D
‘ureb [euosiad Joy sopjod
uesiped Jo sysalelul [eroads juassaidal
pinom ays Jo ay ey} uoissaiduwll
8y} anIb 03 papusiul S| YdIym uoijoe
Aue a)e] 10U ||IM SIBqUIsW pieog g
sassaooud Buippiq
ojjgnd pue uolesuadulod Jsquuaul
pJeoq uienob pue siemod pieog |00YyoSg
aulep YoIym Mme| UOIIBONPS JUOLLISA
J0 suoisiroad asouy ‘0} aJeype pue
‘YUM Jejjiwey 8q ||Im Sieguisw pleog 'y
"SpJepuels BuImoj|o) S} 0} BJ8Ype [[IM Sioquiaiu
Sl pue pJeog ayy ‘pasodul sny} suoiiebiqo
8yl yum Aldwoo 0} JapJo U| "pJeoq sy} Jo Jaguisiu
e Se suoljoe Jsy Jo siy AQ pauliey &q 10 Wo.l)




J0 101)3u09 8y} Yeyy Buipuy olgnd e enss| "¢
"81njels Juouwlsp Ag paainbai se ‘enssi jeyy 0}
paje|ed UoIS|oap o suoielaqiep pleog syi ul
Bunedionued asimiaylo 10 BuljoA wouy j8siay

Jo wy Ayrenbsip pinoys Jequiswi 8y} 1ey) pue
aouspIne ay} Aq papoddns s abieyo 1seleiul

J0 1o13u09 8y} yeyy Buipuy olgnd e enss| g

"POSSIWSIP 810§819Y} SI PUB 82USPIAS
ay} Aq pauoddns jou si abieyo 1salolul

Jo 101yu00 BU} yey} bujpul olignd e enss] ‘|

suonoe BUIMOI|0) 8} 4O BUO 8)e} 0} 810A Aliolew
Aq sujwsep [IM Siequuswl pseog Bululews.

ay; ‘Buliesy [ewuojur 8y} JO UOISNOUOD 8y} 1Y (g
‘pieay

2q 0} Ayunpoddo ue wieo sy Buibulig uosied ay)
pue Jsqwsw pJeog ay} yrog Bulaib ‘wie|o 1saisjul
JO 101}U09 8y} uo Buuesy [ewioul Ue pjoy ||Im
pJeog sy} “reyd ay} jo JapJio uodn Jo ‘sisquual
pJeog Bujuiewsad sy} jo a10A Ajuofew e uodn (v
"PEMO]|04

aq ||Im seunpaooud pieog Buimojjo) ay; ‘sisixe 10e)
Ul J01)}UOD € JBy} JNDUOD JOU SS0P SpeLU S| Wie|o
ay) woym jsuiebe Joaquiaw pieog ay; pue ‘olgnd
8y} JO Jaquiaw B JO Jaquiswl pieogq Jeyioue

Aq psaubis si pue Bupum u) pJeog ayy 01 1ybnouq si
Joquisw pJeogq E jsuieffe wiejo 1sa4ajul JO 101JU0D
B USUAA 1S9491U] JO 101)juo) jo spuiejdwion

"JOIUOD 8y} 0}

asy Buialib enss) ay) Jo uoissnoasip ul Buiedioued
10 BUOA WO} UIBISOE [IM PUB ‘Sa)nuiw pJeoq ay)
Ul uoIsn|oul 1o} 101Juoo jo 9oueseadde IO 101jJU0D
81 JO JUSIXe pue dInjeU dU} 8Je|0ap ||IM BYS




"Juspusiuedng
8y} J0 si1eaun|oA ‘seakojdwse jo souewioued
Jo sjuswbpnl lenpiaipul sseldxa Jou |Im
siequisw pseog ‘Aojjod pieoq jo uonelasdiolul
9|qeuoseas Aue paasiyoe sey uspusiuedng
8y} Jayidym Jnoge uoieiaqiiep
pJeoq ul uonedioiued ioy 1deox3 (D
"SUoISIoap
pJeoq peiels Ajoijdxs jeeds. 0 Jdsoxe
pleog ay} Jo} yeads 0} Joequiew pJeoq Aue Jo
Aljigeul ay} pue uolejwli| swes sy} sziuboosal
1SNuw sapus Jaylo Jo ‘ssaud sy ‘ongnd
8yl Yyum suoljoeielul siequiaw pieog (g
‘pieog
ay1 Aq pazuoyine Aoldxa uaym 1daoxa
S|enpIAIpUl Ul pa}saA AJLioyine Jo X3or| a8y}
921ub02al ISNW Hels Yum Jo uspusiuuedng
8y} yum uonoelsiul siequaw preog (v
{Yyons sy "uojjeJISIuILWPE |00YOS 8Y3 10 pleog
8yl JO J[eyaq uo uoloe 9} JO SUOISIOBap ayew
0} Ajioyine ay) sey ays Jo ay ey uoissaiduul
as|e} ay} aaIb 0} papusjul Buiyiou op |Im Jaguuawl
pieog V ‘uoljeziueblio ayl Jono AlJoyine [enplAlpul
osiolexe 0} 1dwaye jou Aew siequiew pieog ‘g

‘me| Aq pamo|e

aq Aew se uonoe Jaylo yons o3 peyosiqns

Jo painsuad Ajjewlo) aq pinoys Jaquiaw
pJeog ayj ‘UoisIoap 40 suoleIaqIIep pleog
ayy u bBupedioiued esimisylo 1o Buoa woly
Jlosiay Jo wiy BuiAjenbsip 0} uoiippe Ui ‘pue
2ouapine oy} Aq pauoddns si ebieyo iseia)ul




¢ ssalboud Ino ssasseal am [Im NIHM

isuaddey 3 ainsua 03 diysiapea| ayj} 10} 9|qeIUNOIIL B [|IM OLA

¢Aa1jod siyy jo uonesijdde ano anosdwi o} Jeak 3xau ayj uy Buje} o3 1IININOD oM |jIm suolde Jeypn

"JedA )xau ay) 190 Judwaaoidu 1oy Aa1j0d siyj Jo eate JNO 19319

«&A9A3U,, Jo  ‘Ajaael,, ‘awl} ay) JO aWOS,, Se pajed a1om seale YoIym

‘anss| oY1 uo uoisod [euosiad s jequiawl

pJeogq oyl Jo aAljoadsa ‘Jeyeuwl Aue uo

pJeoq ay) JO uoljeulwIs}ap [eul 8y} 40 Ajuoyine
pue Aoewibe| ey} poddns Im siequiaw pJeoqg 'g

‘uoneJaqiep pleoq
1o} patedaud Apadoud aq |im siequiaw pleog °g

"8JnjeU BAI)ISUSS B JO sanssi 0} sjelidoidde
Alfenuaplyuo sy} yoadsal jIm siequisl pieog v




P: 802-728-5052

Orange Southwest Supervisory District
24 Central Street

Randolph, Vermont 05060

F: 802-728-4844

To: OSSD Board
From: Layne W. Millington, Superintendent
Subject: Mandated Policy Updates
Date: December 14, 2022
Code | Name Why Change Notes
B8 Electronic Communications | Updated Cleaner Language
C2 Student Alcohol and Drugs Updated Cleaner Language
C5 Firearms Updated Cleaner Language
Cl11 | Student Freedom of Updated Cleaner Language
Expression
C13 | Students who are Homeless | Updated Cleaner Language
C15 | Student Conduct and Updated Cleaner Language
Discipline
El Title I Parent and Family Updated Cleaner Language, Revised Procedure
Engagement
F2 School Mascot and Branding | New Mandated | New State Law
G3 Fund Balance Policy Recommended | New
by Auditors




POLICY B8: ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN EMPLOYEES AND
STUDENTS

Policy

II.

The Orange Southwest School District (OSSD) recognizes electronic communications and
the use of social media outlets create new options for extending and enhancing the
educational program of the school district. Electronic communications and the use of social
media can help students and employees communicate regarding: questions during non-school
hours regarding homework or other assignments; scheduling issues for school-related co-
curricular and interscholastic athletic activities; school work to be completed during a
student’s extended absence; distance learning opportunities; and other professional
communications that can enhance teaching and learning opportunities between employees
and students. However, the OSSD recognizes employees and students can be vulnerable in
electronic communications.

In accordance with Act 5 of 2018 this policy is adopted to provide guidance and direction to
OSSD employees to prevent improper electronic communications between employees and
students.

Definitions. For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:

A. Electronic communication. Electronic communication is any computer-mediated
communication in which individuals exchange messages with others, either individually
or in groups. Examples of electronic communication include, but are not limited to,
email, text messages, instant messaging, voicemail, and image sharing, and
communications made by means of an internet site, including social media and social
networking websites.

B. Social media. Social media is any form of online publication or presence that allows
interactive communication, including, but not limited to, social networks, blogs, websites,
and internet forums. Examples of social media include, but are not limited to, Facebook,
Twitter, Instagram, YouTube, and Google+.

C. Employee. Employee includes any person employed directly by or retained through a
contract of employment with the district, an agent of the school, a school board member,
and including supervisory union employees.

D. Student. Student means any person who attends school in any of the grades
Prekindergarten through 12 operated by the district.

Policy on Electronic Communication Between Students and Employees.
All communication between employees and students shall be professional and appropriate.
The use of electronic communication that is inappropriate in content is prohibited.

A. Inappropriate content of an electronic communication. Inappropriate content of an
electronic communication between an Employee and a Student includes, but is not
limited to:



Iv.

1. Communications of a sexual nature, sexual oriented humor or language, sexual
advances, or content with a sexual overtone;

2. Communications involving the use, encouraging the use, or promoting or advocating
the use of alcohol or tobacco, the illegal use of prescription drugs or controlled
dangerous substances, illegal gambling, or other illegal activities;

3. Communications regarding the employees’ or student’s past or current romantic
relationships;

4. Communications which include the use of profanities, obscene language, lewd
comments, or pornography;

5. Communications that are harassing, intimidating, or demeaning;

6. Communications requesting or trying to establish a personal relationship with a
student beyond the employees’ professional responsibilities;

7. Communications related to personal or confidential information regarding employee
or student that isn’t academically focused; and

8. Communications between an employee and a student between the hours of 10 p.m.
and 6 a.m. An Employee may, however, make public posts to a social network site,
blog or similar application at any time.

. Procedures. The superintendent shall develop procedures for both the receipt and

handling of reports filed under this policy (see IV.A. and B. below).

Enforcement Responsibilities

. Student communications violation of this policy. In the event a student sends an

electronic communication, that is inappropriate as defined in this policy or that violates
the procedures governing inappropriate forms of electronic communication to an
employee, the employee shall submit a written report of the inappropriate communication
(“Report”) to the principal or designee by the end of the next school day following actual
receipt by the Employee of such communication. The principal or designee will take
appropriate action to have the student discontinue such improper electronic
communications.

While the school district will seek to use such improper electronic communications by a
student as a teaching and learning opportunity, student communications violation of this
policy may subject a student to discipline. Any discipline imposed shall take into account
the relevant surrounding facts and circumstances.

. Employee communications violation of this policy. In the event an employee sends an

electronic communication that is inappropriate as defined in this policy or that violates
the procedures governing inappropriate forms of electronic communication to a student,
the student shall or the student’s parent or guardian may submit a written report of the
inappropriate communication (“Report”) to the principal and/or the person designated by
the principal to receive complaints under this policy promptly. The report shall specify
what type of inappropriate communication was sent by the employee with a copy of the
communication, if possible.



Inappropriate electronic communications by an employee may result in appropriate
disciplinary action.

C. Applicability. The provisions of this policy shall be applicable at all times while the
employee is employed by the district and at all times the student is enrolled in the school
district, including holiday and summer breaks. An employee is not subject to these
provisions to the extent the employee has a family relationship with a student (i.e.
parent/child, nieces, nephews, grandchildren, etc.).

D. Other district policies. Improper electronic communications that may also constitute
violations of other policies of the district, i.e. unwelcome sexual conduct may also
constitute a violation of the school’s separate policy on the Prevention of Harassment,
Hazing and Bullying of Students. Complaints regarding such behavior should be directed
as set forth in the school’s Procedures on the Prevention of Harassment, Hazing and
Bullying of Students.

V. Reporting to Other Agencies
A. Reports to Department of Children and Families [DCF]. When behaviors violative of
this policy include allegations of child abuse, any person responsible for reporting
suspected child abuse under 33 V.S.A. §4911, et seq., must report the allegations to the
Commissioner of DCF. If the victim is over the age of 18 and a report of abuse is
warranted, the report shall be made to Adult Protective Services in accordance with 33
V.S.A. §6901 et seq.

B. Reports to Vermont Agency of Education [AOE]. Accordingly, if behaviors violative
of this policy in a public school involve conduct by a licensed educator that might be
grounds under Vermont law for licensing action, the principal shall report the alleged
conduct to the superintendent and the superintendent shall report the alleged conduct to
the AOE.

C. Reporting Incidents to the Police. Nothing in this policy shall preclude persons from
reporting to law enforcement any incidents and/or conduct that may be a criminal act.

D. Continuing Obligation to Investigate. Reports made to either DCF or law enforcement
shall not be considered to absolve the school administrators of their obligations under this
or any other policy, such as the Policy on the Prevention of Harassment, Hazing and
Bullying, to pursue and complete an investigation upon receipt of notice of conduct
which may constitute a policy violation.

_VSBA Update: " "fJune25,2020 :
_Date Warned: 7
Date Adopted: ]
: Legal Reference(s): 1 2018 Acts and Resolves No. 5 (located at :

| hitps:/legislature.vermont.gov/Documents/2018. 1/Docs/ACTS/ACTO05/ACT005%20As%
| 20Enacted.pdf)




POLICY C2: STUDENT ALCOHOL AND DRUGS

Statement of Philosophy: This policy shall be concerned with the health and well-being of all students and the
policy shall take into consideration the individual needs of students with problems (drug, alcohol, substance
abuse problems) as well as the right of the majority of students to an education./?!

It is therefore the policy of the Orange Southwest School District (OSSD) that no student shall knowingly
possess, use, sell, give or otherwise transmit, or be under the influence of any illegal drug, regulated substance, or
alcohol on any school property, or at any school sponsored activity away from or within the school.l®] It is further
the policy of the District to make appropriate referrals in cases of substance abuse.

Definitions
1. The term “substance abuse” as used in this policy is the ingestion of a substance in such a way that it
interferes with a person’s ability to perform physically, intellectually, emotionally, or socially.
2. The term “drug” as used in this policy means any narcotic drug, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine,
barbiturate, cannabis or any other controlled substance as defined by state or federal regulation or
statute.”!

Administrative Responsibilities Related to Alcohol and Drugs
Educational Program. The superintendent or designee shall work with appropriate staff members to develop and
conduct an alcohol and drug abuse educational program.!® The

program shall be consistent with the Vermont Alcohol and Drug Education Curriculum Plan.[" If the District is a
recipient of federal Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act funds, the Act will be considered in the
development of the alcohol and drug abuse educational program.®

Cooperative Agreements.”! The superintendent or designee shall annually designate an individual to be
responsible for providing information to students and parents/guardians about outside agencies that provide
substance abuse prevention services and to encourage the use of their services and programs when appropriate.

The District shall have a cooperative agreement with at least one provider, approved by the Department of Health,
that will provide substance abuse treatment to students who are referred through the school’s support and referral
system, or who refer themselves for treatment.

Immediate Procedures.!'” The superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for handling any
alcohol/drug related incident until the student has been discharged to the parent, guardian, social service, medical,
or law enforcement agency.

Emergency.!'!! The superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for administering emergency first aid
related to alcohol and drug abuse. The procedures will define the roles of the personnel involved.

Administrative Responsibilities Related to Student Conduct and Discipline

Any student who violates this policy by knowingly possessing, using, selling, giving or otherwise transmitting, or
being under the influence of any illegal drug, regulated substance, or alcohol, on any school property, or at any
school sponsored activity away from or within the school shall be subject to discipline consistent with the
District's policy on Student Conduct and Discipline and the school’s overall discipline plan developed pursuant to
16 V.S.A. § 1161a.




[1] This policy is required by 16 V.S.A. 1165(c) and SBE Rule 4212. Unless otherwise noted in the following notes, the State Board rule requires that the policy include the
elements contained in this model.

[2] SBE Rule 4212 requires the policy to have this statement of philosophy.

[3] 16 V.S.A. § 1165(a). See also 18 V.S.A. § 4237 making it unlawful for any person to sell or dispense any regulated drug to minors or to any other person on school
property or property adjacent to a school. See 16 V.S.A. §140 regarding prohibition of tobacco use on public school grounds or at public school sponsored functions.

[4] Vermont State Board of Education Manual of Rules and Practices, Rule 4211

[5] See definitions of narcotic drugs and hallucinogenic drugs in 18 V.S.A. §4201; and controlled substances in 41 U.S.C. §706(3) and 21 U.S.C. §812.

[6] 16 V.S.A. §131(9) Definition of Comprehensive Health Education includes drugs, including education about alcohol, caffeine, nicotine, and prescribed drugs.

[71 SBE Rule 4212.2 requiring the education program be consistent with this Plan.

[8120 U.S.C. §§7101 et seq. Safe & Drug-Free Schools & Communities Act of 1994

[9] SBE Rule 4212.3 requiring the provision of support and referral system for students in distress.

[10] SBE Rule 4212.3A requiring a policy on the handling of any alcohol/drug-related incident.

[11] SBE Rule 4212.3B requiring that each “...school district policy.. .establish procedures for administering first aid related to alcohol and drug abuse. The procedures will
define the roles of the personnel involved.”

T

Date Adopied:

Legal Reference(s):

1
I
1
[}
1
L}
1
r-—=—====-==== e
1
1
I
1
[}
1
1



POLICY C5: FIREARMS

Policy 4
It is the policy of the Orange Southwest (OSSD) School District to comply with the federal Gun Free Schools Act

of 1994 and state law requiring school districts to provide for the possible expulsion of students who bring
firearms to or possess firearms at school. It is further the intent of the board to maintain a student discipline
system consistent with the requirements of the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act and the Vermont State Board of Education rules.

Definitions
For the purposes of this policy, the terms “firearm” “school” and “expelled” shall be defined consistent with the

definitions required by state and federal law.

Sanctions
Any student who brings a firearm to school, or who possesses a firearm at school shall be brought by the

superintendent to the school board for an expulsion hearing.

A student found by the school board after a hearing to have brought a firearm to school shall be expelled for at
least one calendar year. However, the school board may modify the expulsion on a case-by-case basis when it
finds circumstances such as, but not limited to:

1. The student was unaware that they had brought a firearm to school.

2. The student did not intend to use the firearm to threaten or endanger others.

3. The student is disabled and the misconduct is related to the disability.

4. The student does not present an ongoing threat to others and a lengthy expulsion would not serve the best

interests of the pupil.

At the discretion of the school board and administration, an expelled student may be afforded limited educational
services at a site other than the school during the period of expulsion under this policy.

Policy Implementation
An expulsion hearing conducted under this policy shall afford due process as required by law and as developed by

the superintendent or designee.

The superintendent shall refer to the appropriate law enforcement agency any student who brings a firearm to a
school under the control and supervision of the school district. The superintendent may also report any incident
subject to this policy to the Department for Children and Families (DCF).

The superintendent shall annually provide the Secretary of Education with descriptions of the circumstances
surrounding expulsions imposed under this policy, the number of students expelled, and the type of firearms
involved.

i VSBA Review . Reviewed 9/22/2022 ;
E Date Warned: 12/14/22 E
: Date Adopted: .

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

18 U. S C § 921 (Gun Free School Zones Act of 1990) 1

'
R L T |
' '

__________________________________________________________________________________________






POLICY C11: STUDENT FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION IN SCHOOL-SPONSORED MEDIA

Policy

Freedom of expression is a fundamental principle in a democratic society that provides all citizens, including
students, with the right to engage in a robust discussion of ideas. It is the policy of the Orange Southwest School
District (OSSD) to ensure that students enjoy free speech and free press protections related to school-sponsored
media, and to encourage students to become educated, informed, and responsible members of society.

No expression made by students in school-sponsored media shall be deemed to be an expression of school policy.

Definitions

1. Media advisor means a person employed, appointed, or designated by the district/supervisory union to
provide instruction relating to school-sponsored media.

2. School-sponsored media means any material prepared, written, published, or broadcast as part of a
school-supported program or activity by a student journalist that is distributed or generally made
available as part of a school-supported program or activity to an audience beyond the classroom in which
the material is produced.

3. Student journalist means a student enrolled in the district/supervisory union who gathers, compiles,
writes, edits, photographs, records or prepares information for dissemination in school-sponsored media.

4. Student supervisor means a student who is responsible for editing school-sponsored media.

Implementation

Subject only to the conditions 1-6 below, a student journalist may exercise freedom of speech and freedom of the
press in school-sponsored media. Student supervisors of school-sponsored media are responsible for determining
the content of their respective media.

This policy does not authorize or protect content of school-sponsored media that:

Is libelous or slanderous;

Constitutes an unwarranted invasion of privacy;

May be defined as obscene, gratuitously profane, threatening or intimidating;

May be defined as harassment, hazing, or bullying under Title 16 § 11;

Violates federal or state law; or

Creates the imminent danger of materially or substantially disrupting the ability of the school to perform
its educational mission.

U AW

District staff may restrain the distribution of content in school-sponsored media that can be demonstrated to
violate any of the conditions 1-6 above.

Content in school-sponsored media will not be restrained solely because it involves political or controversial
subject matter, or is critical of the school or its administration. -

A student journalist may not be disciplined for acting in accordance with this policy.



A media advisor may not be disciplined for taking reasonable and appropriate action to protect a student
journalist in conduct protected by this policy or for refusing to infringe on conduct that is protected by this
policy, by the first amendment to the U.S. Constitution, or by the Vermont Constitution.

[1] 16 V.S.A. § 1623(i) states that each school or its governing body shall adopt a written policy consistent with
the provisions of 16 V.S.A. § 1623.

 VSBA Review: y October 3, 2022 "
T S T 1
\ Date Warned: | 1214722 !
1 1 1
-t TTTTsT oSS mE e ]
: Date Adopfed: : 1
1
I m e e e e = = = == == I e e o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e o e e e e e e = e e e e = e = e = = ]
| Legal Reference(s) | 16 V.S.A. § 1623 :

1

1

1

1

1



POLICY C13: STUDENTS WHO ARE HOMELESS

The Orange Southwest School District (OSSD) is committed to the success of every
student. Homeless students in the District will have access to the education and other
services needed to ensure that an opportunity is available to meet the same academic
achievement standards to which all students are held.

The District will designate a liaison for students in homeless situations to carry out duties
as required by law.

The District will ensure that homeless students are not stigmatized nor segregated on the
basis of their status as homeless. A homeless student will be admitted to the school district
in which the student is actually living or to the student’s school of origin as requested by
the parent and in accordance with the student'’s best interest. Transportation will be
provided to and from the student's school of origin at the request of the parent, or in the
case of an unaccompanied student, the District’s liaison for homeless students. Homeless
students will have access to all programs and services for which they are eligible, including
but not limited to special education services, preschool, school nutrition programs, and
language assistance for English learners.

Definitions
Homeless students means those lacking a fixed, regular and adequate nighttime residence,
which could include:

1. Sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or
similar reason;

a. Living in motels, hotels, trailer parks or camping grounds due to the lack of
alternative adequate accommodations;

b. Living in emergency or transitional shelters;

c. Being abandoned in hospitals;

d. Having a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not
designed for or ordinarily used as regular sleeping accommodations for human
beings;

e. Living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard
housing, transportation stations or similar settings; and

f. Migratory children living in conditions described in the previous examples.

2. Enroll and enroliment mean attending classes and participating fully in school
activities.

3. Unaccompanied youth means a homeless child or youth not in the physical custody
of a parent or guardian.

4, School of Origin means the school that a child or youth attended when permanently
housed or the school in which the child or youth was last enrolled, including a
preschool. When a child or youth completes the final grade level served by the school
of origin, it also includes the designated receiving school at the next grade level for all
feeder schools.

Administrative Responsibilities
The superintendent or designee shall develop written procedures to ensure the following
rights of eligible students:




1. Equal access to the same free, appropriate public education, including public
prekindergarten education, as is provided to other children and youth;

2. Immediate enroliment, even when records normally required for enroliment are
not present;

3. Remain in the school of origin, if it is in the student’s best interest, in order to
maintain educational stability;

4. Access to all educational and related services for which they are eligible,
including Title | services, educational programs for children with disabilities,
educational programs for English learners, career and technical education,
programs for gifted and talented students, and free school meals;

5. Full participation in school, which may include participation in extracurricular
activities;

6. Transportation, provided by the local education agency (LEA), to and from the
school of origin;

7. Privacy, such that information about a homeless student’s living situation will be
treated as a student education record and not deemed to be directory
information.

8. Dispute an eligibility, school selection, or enroliment decision, and for a child or
youth to be admitted to the school in which enroliment is sought, pending the
resolution of the dispute.

VSBA Update: September 13, 2022

Date Warned: 12.14.22
Date Adopted:

Legal Reference(s): McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (as amended by ESSA) 42 U.S.C. §§ 11431~
11432

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99

Cross References: N/A




POLICY C15: STUDENT CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINE

It is the policy of the Orange Southwest School District (OSSD) to maintain a safe, orderly, civil and
positive learning environment via a system of classroom and school management practices, supported by
consistent, clear and fair disciplinary procedures. The goal of this policy is to create an environment
where the expectations for student behavior are clearly stated, are understood, and accepted by students
and staff, and are applied in compliance with due process requirements and Vermont law and State
Board of Education rules. This policy is to be applied in conjunction with the school's overall discipline
plan developed pursuant to 16 V.S.A. § 1161a, the requirements of 16 V.S.A. § 1162, and in
conformance with State Board Rule 4500, and any policies adopted by the District with regard to the
Use of Restraint and Seclusion.

Definitions
' Weapon means a device, instrument, material, or substance whether animate or inanimate,

which, when used as it is intended to be used, is known to be capable of producing death or
serious bodily injury.[!

2. School means any setting which is under the control and supervision of the School District. It
includes school grounds, facilities, and school-sponsored events whether held on or off of school
grounds and vehicles used to transport students to and from school or school activities. %!

3. Expelled means the termination of educational services for the remainder of the school year or
up to 90 school days, whichever is longer.[*]

4 Knife means any instrument that is capable of ready use as a stabbing weapon that may inflict
bodily injury or death.

Student Responsibilities
It is the responsibility of each student to contribute to a safe and productive learning environment in the

school by demonstrating respect and consideration for fellow students and adults. This includes
complying with all policies and rules of conduct of the school district and individual classrooms.

Administrative Responsibilities
The principal, in consultation with the educational staff, will develop an overall discipline plan (the

“Plan”) pursuant to 16 V.S.A. §1161a.

The Plan will include clear guidelines for student behavior. The Plan may include provisions for the
suspension or expulsion of students who engage in misconduct on school property, on a school bus, or at
a school sponsored activity when the misconduct makes the continued presence of the student harmful to
the welfare of the school community. The Plan may also include provisions for the suspension or
expulsion of students who engage in misconduct not on school property, on a school bus, or at a school
sponsored activity where direct harm to the school can be demonstrated or where the misconduct can be
shown to pose a clear and substantial interference with another student’s equal access to educational
programsl*l and/or where such student conduct violates the District’s policy for the prevention of

1 See 13 V.S.A. §4016(a)(2) for definition of “dangerous or deadly weapon.”
2 The Federal Gun Free Schools Act defines “school” as “...any setting that is under the control and supervision of the local education agency for the

purpose of student activities approved and authorized by the local education agency. 20 U.S.C. § 7151(b)(f).
316 V.S.A. §1162(a).

4 See 16 V.S.A. § 1162(a)(3)



harassment hazing and bullying, with respect to sexual harassment, or harassment, or hazing, and such
discipline is reasonably designed to prevent a reoccurrence of such conduct.

The Plan shall include any prohibitions against possession by students of knives, weapons, and
dangerous instruments while at school, and shall allow disciplinary action up to and including expulsion
for violations of the prohibition against knives, weapons and dangerous instruments that are not
possessed at school as part of an educational program sponsored or sanctioned by the school.]

Expectations for behaviors, and the consequences of engaging in prohibited conduct, will be set forth in
the student handbook and other publications distributed to students and parents/guardians.

The superintendent or designee shall ensure the analysis of student discipline data to identify and
address any disproportionalities in discipline.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in a school’s Plan, a student enrolled in a public school who is
under eight years of age shall not be suspended or expelled from the school; provided, however, that the
school may suspend or expel the student if the student poses an imminent threat of harm or danger to
others in the school.l’]

7See 16 V.S.A. § 1162(d)

. Date Wamed: D242 :
: Date Adopted: e :
Legal Reference(s): | 16 V.S.A_§1161a (discipline) 5

' VT State Board of Education Manual of Rules & Practices §§4311, 4312, 4313;
1 2120.8.12, 2122.1,4500. ;

Cross Reference: ' Notice of Non-Discrimination '

5 The “knives, weapons and dangerous instruments” prohibition in this model policy is not required by law. The possession of “dangerous and deadly

weapons” on school grounds by any individual is prohibited by 13 V.S.A. §4004. This prohibition does not apply to the possession of firearms in schools
for “instructional or other specific purposes.” 13 V.S.A. §4004(c)(2).



POLICY E1: TITLE I, PART A PARENT AND FAMILY ENGAGEMENT

Title I, Part A Parent and Family Engagement Policy

It is the policy of the Orange Southwest School District (OSSD) to plan and implement effective needs-
based Title 1 programs, activities, policies and procedures with meaningful consultation and involvement of
participating Title I parents and family members that comply with all parent and family engagement
requirements, specifically those required by federal statute. As such, the LEA is responsible for ensuring
compliance with development and implementation of the following three documents:

1. LEA PARENT AND FAMILY ENGAGEMENT POLICY: As a Title I Part A served LEA we
will outline and describe the ways in which we will be responsible for and address the Parent and
Family Requirements listed and will develop jointly with, agree on with, and distribute to, parents and
family members of participating children a written parent and family engagement policy that meets all
requirements described below.

2. SCHOOL-LEVEL PARENT AND FAMILY ENGAGEMENT PROCEDURE: Each

Of our schools served by Title I Part A will outline and describe the ways in which the school will be
responsible for and address the Parent and Family Requirements listed. Each school will jointly
develop with, and distribute to, parents and family members of participating children a written parent
and family engagement procedure, agreed on by such parents, that will describe the means for
carrying out the requirements described below.

2a. SCHOOL-PARENT COMPACT: Each of our school(s) served by Title I Part A, as part of their
Parent and Family Engagement Procedure, will develop jointly with, agree on with, and distribute to,
parents and family members of participating children a School-Parent compact to outline how parents,
the entire school staff, and students will share the responsibility for improved student academic
achievement and the means by which the school and parents will build and develop a partnership to
help children achieve the State's high academic standards.

Definitions:
Local Education Agency: for purposes of this policy, a supervisory union or supervisory district is
the local education agency (LEA).
Parent: Includes a legal guardian or other person standing in loco parentis (such as a grandparent or
stepparent with whom the child lives, or a person who is legally responsible for the child’s welfare). 2!



Parent and Family Engagement (PFE): The inclusion of parents, families, schools, and communities in
order to support learning and improve schools. Opportunities for the informed participation of parents and
family members, including those who have limited English proficiency, those who have disabilities, and
those of migratory children.

Implementation

The OSSD will ensure the successful development and implementation of the written LEA Parent and
Family Engagement Policy, School Parent and Family Engagement Procedure(s), and School-Parent
Compact(s) and will address all requirements in specific detail with review and revision on a periodic and
timely basis.

1. LEA Parent & Family Engagement Policy * 1

In order to provide all children with significant opportunity to receive a fair, equitable, and high- quality
education, and to close educational gaps, the OSSD receives Title I, Part A funds. Therefore, the OSSD
will develop, with the parents and family members of participating students, a written parent and family
engagement policy. This policy will outline the Local Education Agency’s (LEA) expectations and
objectives for meaningful parent and family engagement and the ways in which the LEA will implement
and support opportunities for parent and family involvement in order to improve student academic
achievement.

Part I: General Requirements and Expectations

1. In order to support increased parent and family engagement to improve student academic
achievement, the OSSD has the following objective(s):

The OSSD will engage parents and families in meaningful ways to enhance collaboration and
commitment regarding student learning and development. The goals of this partnership include
but are not limited to:

e Improved student behavior.
¢ Higher academic achievement.
o Improved social skills.

e A reduction in high-risk behaviors such as substance use, violence, and the
manifestations of mental health problems.

2. The OSSD agrees to take the following actions to involve parents and family members in the
joint development of its Local Educational Agency Plan:

Parents will have the oppertunity to be involved in the development of the OSSD plan through
several venues:

¢ Proving input during community open forums.
o Through an annual survey.
¢ Through participation at/on school level advisory boards.

s Responding to community wide electronic communications soliciting feedback and
input.



3. The OSSD agrees to take the following actions to involve parents and family members in the
joint development of its Support and Improvement Plans:

Parents will have the opportunity to be involved in the development of the OSSD plan through
several venues:

¢ Proving input during community open forums.
e Through an annual survey.
¢ Through participation at/on school level advisory boards.

¢ Responding to community wide electronic communications soliciting feedback and
input.

4. The OSSD agrees to take the following actions to provide coordination, technical assistance, and
other support necessary in order to build capacity for parent and family engagement activities to
improve student achievement and school performance:

The district will provide support to it’s Title 1 schools as they implement parent and family
engagement activities by:

e Creating a process for each school to follow for the creation, review and revision of
their Family Engagement Plans and School-Family compacts.

e Providing for professional development in increasing parent and family engagement.

¢ Ensuring a connection between this engagement plan and the development of school
improvement plans.

5. The OSSD will conduct, with the meaningful involvement of parents and family members, an annual
evaluation of the content and effectiveness of this Parent & Family Title I, Part A Parent & Family
Engagement Policy in improving the academic quality of all its Title I schools. The evaluation will
include identifying the following:

e Barriers to greater family participation in Title I parent and family engagementactivities
(with particular attention to parents who are economically disadvantaged, are disabled, have
limited English proficiency, have limited literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic minority
background).

e The needs of parents and family members to assist with the learning of their children,
including engaging with school personnel and teachers

e Strategies to support successful school and family interactions

The OSSD agrees to take the following actions to conduct this annual evaluation:

s Administer an annual survey, publicly communicate the data, and engage the community to
develop recommended changes to this policy.

o ldentify potential policy and compact changes through formal and informal conversations
with staff, parents, students and community members.

6. The OSSD agrees to take the following actions to use the findings of the annual evaluation to
design evidence-based strategies for more effective parent and family engagement, and to revise the
LEA Parent & Family Engagement Policy, if necessary:

e The survey data will be analyzed by the school level advisory committees who will
provide recommendations to improve parent and family engagement.



7. The OSSD agrees to take the following actions to involve parents in the activities of the schools:

¢ Creation of school level parent advisory boards, PTO’s or PTA’s to serve as
representatives in the development, revision and annual evaluation of the
engagement policy.

Part I1: Building Capacity for Involvement

To ensure effective involvement of parents and to support a partnership among the schools, parents, and
the community in order to improve student achievement, the OSSD will use the following strategies:
e The OSSD will aid parents of childrenserved by the LEA in understanding the
following topics:

i. The challenging State academic standards
ifi. State and local academic assessments
ili. Title I, Part A requirements
iv. How to monitor their child’s progress
v. How to work with educators to improve their children’s achievement
The OSSD agrees to take the followings actions in order provide this assistance:

o The OSSD will continue to create Title IV investments in order to finance parent evenings
designed to educate and empower parents and families when it comes to understanding state
standards, understanding state and local assessments, understanding how to monitor their
child’s progress, and working with their schools to improve student achievement.

The OSSD agrees to provide materials and training, as appropriate, to help parents work with their children to
improve their children’s achievement:

e Evening parent workshops designed to support both student academics and social skills
development.

e Curriculum materials designed for parents to use at home, both physical copies and online.
o  SKkill building games for use at home, both physical and online.
e Age-appropriate reading books.

The OSSD agrees to take the following actions to educate its teachers, specialized instructional support
personnel, principals and other school leaders, and other staff, with the assistance of parents, in the

following areas:
b. The value of contributions of parents
¢. How to reach out to, communicate with, and work with parents as equal partners
d. How to implement and coordinate parent programs

e. How to build ties between parents and school

The OSSD agrees to provide materials and training, as appropriate, to help staff more fully engage with parents
and families:



e  Workshops deigned to build skills in better engaging parents and families.
o Printed resources on enhanced engagement practices.
e Dedicated PLC (professional learning community) time to plan implementation strategies.

o Integration of engagement strategies within our parent-teacher evenings.

The OSSD will, to the extent feasible and appropriate, coordinate and integrate Title I parent involvement
programs and activities with other Federal, State, and local programs and conduct other activities that
encourage and support parents in more fully participating in the education of their children. The OSSD
agrees to coordinate this work with our:

e Preschool and kindergarten programs.

e School lunch program.

o Title I, Title I11, Title IV programs.

e Apprenticeship and work-study programs.
¢ Dual enrollment program.

e Afterschool and summer programs.

The OSSD agrees to take the following actions to ensure that information related to the school and
parent programs, meetings, and other activities is sent to the parents of participating children in a
format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents can understand:

¢ Providing translation service to support English Language Learners.

¢ Disseminating information using our mass email system and our website.
¢ Sending information home with students.

e Making information available via each school main office.

e Creating a calendar of district meetings and pertinent topics.

The OSSD agrees to take the following actions to provide other reasonable support for parent
involvement activities, as parents may request:

Parents and families may request further engagement activities through participation at
any of the district or school open forums or advisory council meeting. Requests may also be
made directly to school or district administrators. All such requests will be provided to the
appropriate advisory council for consideration.

PART III. Policy Adoption

This LEA’s Parent & Family Engagement Policy was adopted by the OSSD on January 11, 2023. The LEA
will distribute this policy to all parents of participating Title 1, Part A children annually on or before the last
day of September.




VSBA Version: 9/24/2021

Date Wamed: 12.14.2022

Date Adopted:

Legal Reference: 20 USC § 7801(38)
20 U.8.C. § 6318
16 V.S.A § 43

Cross Reference:

[ 1 ] This policy is mandatory for LEAs and schools that receive Title |, Part A funds. 20 U.S.C. § 6318(a){2).

[2] 20 usc § 7801(38) definition of term “parent.”

[3]20 U.S.C. § 6318
Special Rule: If the school has a parent and family engagement policy that applies to all parents and family members, the school may amend that

policy, if necessary, to meet the requirements.

[4] 20 U.5.C. § 6318
Amendment: If the LEA involved has a school district-level parent and family engagement policy that applies to all parents and family members in all

schools served by the LEA, the LEA may amend that policy, if necessary, to meet the requirements.



POLICY F2: NONDISCRIMINATORY MASCOTS AND SCHOOL BRANDING

Statement of Policy

It is the policy of the Orange Southwest School District (OSSD) to provide welcoming, positive, and
inclusive learning environments for all students by prohibiting the use of discriminatory

school branding, which undermines the educational experiences of members of all communities

and perpetuates negative stereotypes.

Definitions
1. “School” means a public school or an independent school approved under section 166 of Title 16.

2. “School board” or “Board” means the board of directors or other governing body of an
educational institution when referring to an independent school.

3. “School branding” means any name, symbol, or image used by a school as a mascot, nickname,
logo, letterhead, team name, slogan, motto, or other identifier.

Administrative Responsibilities
The superintendent or designee shall:

1. periodically review and provide recommendations for necessary updates to the nondiscriminatory
school branding policy as necessary;

2. assist the school board in its review of the district’s school branding to ensure compliance with
the policy following any school branding changes or updates to the policy;

3. assist the school board in ensuring the prohibition of school branding that directly or indirectly
references or stereotypes the likeness, features, symbols, traditions, or other characteristics that
are specific to either:

a. the race, creed, color, national origin, sexual orientation, or gender identity of any person
or group of persons; or
b. any person, group of persons, or organization associated with the repression of others;

4. Develop a procedure for an individual to file a complaint that an element of school branding is in

violation of the policy.

Complaints

An individual may request an opportunity to appear before the Board for purposes of
presenting the complaint, relevant facts, and further explanations. The board shall hear the
complaint in a fair and just manner. The Board shall render a decision within 45 days of the
hearing, which must include a summary of facts and basis for the decision.

If the individual is unsatisfied with the Board's decision, the individual may appeal the decision
to the Secretary of Education. Appeals shall be filed within 30 days of the school board's
decision by sending a written notice of appeal to the Agency of Education.



VSBA Review Date August 15, 2022
Date Warned 12/14/22

Date Adopted

Legal References 16 V.S.A. § 568

Cross References

District Equity Policy




POLICY G3 FUND BALANCE POLICY

Statement of Policy

It is the policy of the Orange Southwest School District (OSSD) to addresses the implications of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Definitions. This policy is created in consideration of unanticipated events that
could adversely affect the financial condition of the School District and jeopardize the continuation of
necessary public services.

Definition(s)

“Fund balance” is the difference between the assets and liabilities reported in a governmental
fund. There are five separate components of fund balance, each of which identifies the extent
to which the School District/Supervisory Union is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purpose for which amounts can be spent.

1.

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Non-spendable fund balance consists of funds that cannot be spent due to their form (e.g.
prepaid expenses) or funds that legally or contractually must be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance consists of funds that are mandated for a specific purpose by
external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation (e.g. federal and state
grants, trust and trustee accounts).

Committed fund balance consists of funds that are set aside for a specific purpose by the
Board. Formal action must be taken prior to the end of the fiscal year. The same formal
action must be taken to remove or change the limitations placed on the funds.

Assigned fund balance consists of funds that are set aside with the intent to be used for a
specific purpose by the Board, body, or official that has been given the authority to assign
funds (e.g. encumbrances, future budgets). Assigned funds cannot create a deficit in
unassigned fund balance.

Unassigned fund balance consists of excess funds that have not been classified in the
previous four categories. All funds in this category are considered spendable resources.
This category provides the resources necessary to meet unexpected expenditures and
revenue shortfalls as allowed by state law.

The OSSD expects that supervisory administrators will manage the school district budget so that
revenue shortfalls and expenditure increases do not create a deficit in terms of the total unassigned
fund balance. Financial updates will be provided at least quarterly should a deficit be predicted
which will include recommended actions to minimize the impact of any projected losses.

Date Warned 12/14/22

Date Adopted



ORANGE SOUTHWEST SCHOOL DISTRICT (Unified)
BOARD MEETING

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2022 @ 6 P.M.
RANDOLPH UNION HIGH SCHOOL

To be approved at the December 14, 2022 board meeting

MINUTES
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Anne Kaplan, Katja Evans, Rachel Gaidys, Hannah Arias, Megan
Sault, Chelsea Sprague, & Sarah Haupt
ADMINISTRATORS PRESENT: Layne Millington & Heather Lawler
GUESTS: See attached lists of guests & ORCA Media Video Taping

l. Opening
The meeting was called to order by Chair, Anne Kaplan at 6:03 p.m.
Board Attendance: Ensuring a Quorum
Meeting Purpose: Ownership linkage plan, review of Board procedures, orientation
information, and monitoring

I. Board Education and Ownership Linkage
a. Public comment (4.2.1) (Recognize e-communications to the Board)

The following is a summary of the public comments. Please refer to the recording on
ORCA Media for the full account and more specific information.

Anne Kaplan read a statement regarding public comments at board meetings and then
opened the meeting for public comments.

Lindsey Choiniere — Randolph — parent of a 3rd grade student, has major concerns about
RUHS. School has been plagued, BLM, Chick Fil A, etc. Wonders how are you making a
safe, happy learning environment for students. Cited the Zillow, attendance and graduation
ratings. Credits parents for kids doing well. Has not heard one good thing about the high
school. Need to focus on the academics. A different point of view should not make someone
get suspended. Disappointed in the school district.

Jill Harper - Randolph - We live here and have a grandson in HS. Promised a track and field
team in White River. On the 28th we found out that we don’t have a team. It was promised
and doesn’t know what to do. Board Chair responded by directing her to speak with the
Athletic Director

Nick Thresher - East Randolph - | am here to speak for others and to stand up for a bunch
of young girls. Claimed that when Layne was informed he said, “whaa - its the law”. “We all
have feelings. No one is against the transgender community.” Went on to talk about
genitalia in the locker room, 14 year old brains, and encouraged home schooling. Stated
that Layne needs to go and it is the board’s job to do that. Could have been avoided with
stalls in the locker rooms.

Sarah Crosby - Locker rooms should be safe and comfortable for everybody. Personal
safety and comfort are two different things. Danger comes from behavior. We have
conflicting reports about what happened in the locker room. It is confidential and none of the
community's business. Kids are feeling unsafe. We should not assume the school board has



0SSD Board Minutes

Page 2

November 9, 2022

done the wrong thing. Teach our kids how to handle these things. Greatest divisiveness
coming from hateful calls.

Anita Scott - Daughter (Ava) was seen in the locker room. My daughter was violated
(Crying). Put a stall in there. Her daughter took the girls in to the boy's locker room to
change. Feels bad she didn't stand up for her.

Molly Mullen - Randolph - We elected the school board. There is only so much that these
people can do and they are not the issue. It is horrible being a teenager especially when
they are different. Keep in mind that they are children. Shared a story of her son being
bullied and the importance of confidentiality. Said we should be considerate of the board
and administrators. We need to find the solution without being mean and harassing people
because we are a model for our students. Wants every child to feel loved & safe.

Justin Ford - Randolph Center - People need to speak up for things but not by name calling,
slander, falsely accusing students. He does not agree with LGBT, but he does not harass
them. The issues of gender has no place in schools. To wrongly accuse his son is
inappropriate.

John Helfant - parent of 3 OSSD students - This was never about gay/straight it is about
different genitalia in the same dressing room. Talked about women’s rights and referred to
the all female school board. Cited school district rankings. Mentioned AP exams & wonders
what other school districts are doing right.

Katie Ford - Randolph Center - Teaching students how to be adults. Parents are leaders.
Expressed dissatisfaction with the superintendent. The school board should be responsible
for what is going on and need to put their own feelings aside and stand up for everyone.

Kevin Taylor - East Randolph - This situation is all about opinions. What is being lost is that
our kids have to go to school here. We don't have to agree. | don't agree with trans
individuals mixing in, but it could have been handled different. We need to get past this, we

are all adults.

Colin Duclos - Brookfield — Wonders if there are plans to address the locker room situation?

. Discuss Annual Report to Voters: Brainstorm Info that Board would like to share with

community
Anne explained that the board puts together a piece for the town reports. The board
decided to have a sub committee to prepare a report about what the board has been
doing.
A motion was made for Chelsea Sprague, Sarah Haupt & Anne Kaplan to work
on the annual report to voters

By: Megan Sault
Seconded by: Hannah Arias
Motion passed: Yes

Proposal for Ownership Linkage through the formation of a Portrait of a Graduate process
Heather Lawler spoke about a plan for the Portrait of a Graduate process. Vermont has a
recommended portrait of a graduate. This will be a document that speaks about

outcomes. The process would include many voices from the community during a series of



0SSD Board Minutes

Page 3

November 9, 2022

meetings. It would capture the thinking to view the vision. We have been awarded a
$5,000 mini grant. We have a purpose & plan to move forward and invite community into
this process. Last spring the board worked with Jackie Wilson and would like to work with
the VSBA and Jackie. Discussed ownership linkage with this not being a board committee.
Heather would like school board member input. This would be a document presented for
implementation. Looking at outcomes from meeting with open dialogue and open
communication. Administration would do this work.

Chelsea feels that the board still needs to do some ownership linkage besides this. The
portrait may change our ends. Hannah also feels the board has work to do on ownership
linkage and the board needs a plan for this work. The state is encouraging all schools to
do this. May be a fresh start with the portrait of the graduate and then the board would
review the ends. Felt it was good timing for conversations and wants student
involvement. It will be a series of conversations and a process which should be able to be
completed by the end of this school year and be implemented for the next budget cycle.
Discussed it should be a long term linkage plan which is review annually.

A motion was made to direct the administration (assistant superintendent) to

start the process of a Portrait of a Graduate

By: Hannah Arias
Seconded by: Sarah Haupt
Motion passed: Yes, all in favor

The board discussed the formation of an Ownership Linkage Committee to think about
other ownership linkage. Katja Evans, Anne Kaplan, Hannah Arias, & Megan Sault will
serve on this committee. Reminder that all committee meetings need to be warned 48
hours prior to the meeting. Katja will poll the group for a meeting date.

. Review & adopt Complaint Procedure in light of legal counsel review

The board reviewed the revised Complaint Procedure after legal counsel advice. Step 5
was clarified in this procedure. The board felt to make things clear, maybe some of the
same language used in Step 5 should be reiterated in Step 7.
A motion was made for Anne Kaplan to talk with legal counsel again to suggest
adding language in Step 5 be used again in Step 7 for clarity.

By: Katja Evans
Seconded by: Sarah Haupt
Motion passed: Yes, all in favor

. Review New Board Binders

Anne reviewed each section of the new board binders. The sections are:

1. OSSD Board Mtg Schedule April 2022-June 2023

2. OSSD Contact & Gen Info Apr 22-Feb 23

3. The Orientation Document: Welcome to the Board

4. Rules and Procedures for the OSSD Board 2022-23

5. General Public Comment Preamble

6. (Once adopted by the OSSD Board, the new Resolution of Complaints Procedure)
7. Board's Governance Policies

8. VLCT FAQ for Open Mtgs (Attached)



QSSD Board Minutes
Page 4
November 9, 2022

Discussed how email communications will be handled. Anne will respond to the sender
and let the board know that she has responded.

Il. Monitoring: Organization
a. Accept EL Reports 2.1 & 2.2 (enclosed)
Policy 2.1 Treatment of Students, Parents/Guardians & Community
Policy 2.2 Treatment of Staff
The two EL reports were reviewed for a second time.
A motion was made to accept both EL 2.1 Treatment of Students,
Parents/Guardians & Community and EL 2.2 Treatment of Staff

By: Megan Sault
Seconded by: Sarah Haupt
Motion passed: Yes, all in favor

b. Second reading of Policy: Prevention of Conflict of Interest in Procurement by Personnel
A motion was made to accept the Prevention of Conflict of Interest in
Procurement by Personnel policy

By: Sarah Haupt
Seconded by: Hannah Arias
Motion passed: Yes, all in favor

c. Share current OSSD Ends Info from last year
Layne presented a PowerPoint title Piecemeal Ends #1
He started with an overview about the state data being delayed & behind, the state has
changed their website, and SBAC data could not be found which is likely in prep for the
new testing coming up. Layne then reminded the board that 2018-19 was our last normal
year, 2019-20 there wasn’t testing due to COVID, 2020-21 was remote & hybrid, & 2021-22
was in person, but disrupted due to COVID surges. He also explained absolute data &
trend data with trend data not being as strong. We can use trend data when we can’t
compare SBAC & NAEP in absolute terms. NAEP focuses on grades 4 & 8 and is across the
country. Our kids have been improving (going up) when state data is going down. Layne
provided a chart which shows this. When looking at 8™ grade math, our trend line is going
up and again the state is going down. This was the same result with ELA. Our students
are improving faster than the state & nation in ELA & math. That improvement happened
during the most challenging time for teaching in living memory. Also, the national data
did not include all student groups. Next time Layne will present on the adaptability end.

Iv. Monitoring: Board
a. Assess Board’s compliance with Board Governance Policy 4.4 Chair’s Role (enclosed)
Select area of improvement/leader/when to reassess
The board reviewed each section of 4.4 and looked at if the board has acted consistently
with each item of the policy. The board discussed areas of improvement. Felt it was
important if board members requested a meeting, they should have one. Felt it was
important for the board to discuss issues so they can speak with one voice. Also discussed
executive session with legal counsel, emergency & special meetings. Members of the
community are choosing venues for one sided communication such as at board meetings
and are not looking for a two way conversation. Members of the board expressed that
saying something is important to make a statement to the public.



0SSD Board Minutes

Page 5

November 9, 2022

V.

Vi

VII.

VIL.

Advocacy
a. Report on VSBA Annual Meeting & Conference
This was tabled for another time.

Consent Agenda (4.2)
a. Approve Minutes from OSSD Regular meeting on 10/12/2022 (enclosed with agenda)

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda

By: Katja Evans
Seconded by: Megan Sault
Motion passed: Yes

Other
a. Discuss Negotiations with Unions
This was tabled for another meeting.

Closing
a. Superintendent’s Report (enclosed) was reviewed.

b. Principals’ & Director Reports (newsletter links sent out separately)

¢. Financial Report (enclosed)
Will be requesting reserve funds for emergency heating system repair at RUHS/RTCC and

also requesting reserve funds for a complete revamp of the locker rooms.

Action Items Recap: Complaint procedure
Ownership linkage doodle poll
Special board meeting doodle poll

Executive Session: Meeting with Legal Counsel re: Pending Lawsuit
Personnel & Student Issue

8:49 p.m. A motion was made by Hannah Arias & seconded by Sarah Haupt to enter Executive
Session to discuss the pending lawsuit with legal counsel, personnel & student issue with the
superintendent & assistant superintendent present. Motion passed.

9:33 p.m. The board exited Executive Session. There was no decision or action.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Lubold, Board Clerk

Next Scheduled Meetings:
Agenda Planning Meeting: Monday, November 28, 2022 - 6:00 p.m. @ OSSD
Regular Meeting: Wednesday, December 14, 2022 - 6:00 p.m. @ Randolph Elem.



\chx% b\z\\séol

——""..H
Ntw uresder

_____ it r"S TRELACA) ALzl
411 _M&L_M_@CQSLJLJQZ%‘
e _[Brenda.. (Geroedd
LOCLU; 5—7 Ca,@,(]/(/(/( ahel
Il Tgel LHelSast -
unes Hettaot

_ f _\jﬁéi\__L A

Teoss B\~

___m__l—hﬁdmu\ Chonere. .

vzgf\f\o \en__
fm%__@w LGOS
L//O_L—/ZL éﬂp e o
&l\e,ssm CUQ&\L T
Roen R
| Courdney Lororob%m__m_“
Msz/ i ”\’&L BQQ%Q

) ___.é;\\ﬂﬁ\>dﬁ oS
SM’WL_ CEY

| Kone Fvdo .
e <D ecclt P’ W
El4s Richar
Sk Horee.

| I,_A,\{,.’:,( p T I

MA’H, A




First name
mb

Sara
Sarah
Rachel
Melissa
Marybeth
Tevye
‘Ashley
'ORCA
Layne
‘Maddox
‘Hannah
Troy

Last name

Crosby
‘Gaidys
Hurley

Jones
Kelman
Lincoln

‘Media

Millington
Salls
Swift
Tabor

.Email Duration
:beem*****@**f ¢ ,1 7 min
gl @, com 36 min
:scro******@*** cc 1 hr 14 min

rgaldys@orange' 13 min
hur*****@***. cor 1 hr 19 min
volu*******@*** o 3 hr 7 min
tkelman@orange 56 mln
alln******@**;* cog 58 min
stre***@"**. net 3 hr 50 min

:f_lmllllngton@oran 2 hr 55 min
k25sallsm@orang 55 min
‘ESWIf********@*** ( 36 mm

tabo***********@i 7 mln

Time joined
5:56 PM
5:59 PM
6:00 PM
5:55 PM
5:58 PM
6:22 PM’
6:04 PM|
6:00 PM!
556 PM |
5:56 PM,
6:00 PM!
6:00 PM
6:28 PM

§Time exited

6:13 PM
6:35 PM
7:14 PM
6:07 PM'
7:17 PM!



First name Last name Email Duration "Time joined Time exited
hthomaslynn@Ilynnlawvt.com htho™*****@***.c 42 min 8:40 PM 9:22 PM
Layne Millington Imillington@oranf 42 min 8:50 PM 9:33 PM



Special Meeting of the Board
Orange Southwest School Board
November 18, 2022

5:00 PM

Randolph Elementary School

Attendees: All board members present
Anne Kaplan (chair), Hannah Arias, Sarah Haupt, Megan Sault, Katja Evans, Chelsea Sprague,

Rachel Gaidys, Layne Millington, & Heather Lawler

Additional attendees: Sam Hooper, Elaine Young, Tori Vinton, John Helfant, Jessica Allen &
ORCA Media Video Taping

5:03 Call to Order

Public Comment
John Helfant - There are some federal court cases that have come out that indicate that the

access to locker rooms is going to change. Cited cases where religious freedom was given
consideration over the request for gender identity being respected. Also spoke about Title IX
and women's sports in schools.

5:08

Board Chair invites Sam Hooper to speak regarding his application for the open Brookfield
board seat. He spoke to his background as a Brookfield resident and his belief in community
service and inclusive education. Believes in public education and forward progress. Small
business owner in Randolph with 12 employees. Most of his employees have students in our
public school system. He has two nephews in RES. He will dedicate himself to learning. He also
has some experience with boards and board work. He has a firm understanding of the work.
His goal when working on boards is to listen and add value when appropriate. Works in a
collaborative manner. He would appreciate the opportunity to serve as a representative of

Brookfield.

5:16

Board Chair invites Elaine Young regarding their application for the open Brookfield board seat.
She shared that she has thought about joining the school board for several years. She is not
working from home and has more time to give back. She has a daughter in RUHS and sees a
lot of the things happening that are reflective of our nation. She sees this as a great opportunity
to learn more and understand the work of the board before applying formally for a vote. She is
an educator and teaches college courses. Has a unique lens of experience concerning
academic integrity. She understands that boards do not set curriculum, but she has experience
with looking at data and outcomes. Experience as a parent in schools in multiple schools across
Vermont and also experience working with faculty. These experiences give her a good
background to learn and contribute to the board. | have already read some of the materials you
sent. Identifies as a lifelong learner and is ready to take on this learning.



OSSD Board
November 18, 2022
Page 2

Candidate asked, “What made each of you decide to join the board?”
Several board members shared their experiences.

Katja Evans motions to move to executive session to select the board appointment

Chelsea Sprague seconds the motion
Unanimous vote to go to executive session

5:30 - Executive session begins
5:45 - The board exited Executive Session

5:45
Public Comment
John Helfant - Asked a question about land being purchased. Board chair deferred the inquiry

and directed the commenter to call the Superintendent with the question.

Megan Sault - Move to appoint Sam Hooper to the board
Sarah Haupt Seconded appointment
Unanimous vote to appoint Sam Hooper

Board Chair communicates the next steps to be sworn in and receive their school email and
computer for official business.

5:48
Consent agenda

Board Chair requests an update on the RUHS heating situation. Superintendent reports that we
have identified a vendor who can repair the heating system the first week of December for a
return to instruction on December 5th. Provided an estimate for the cost of the repair.
Discussion of the reality and expenses of relocating instruction to remote locations. Costs
connected to temporary heating, heating fuel, and emergency range. Approximately $250,000 to
$300,000.

Katja Evans moves to approve the use of up to $300,000 of reserve funds for heating repair
And $34,060 for locker room improvements

Megan Sault Seconds
Unanimous vote to approve the use of reserve funds

5:59 PM
Katja Evans moves to enter executive session and invite the Superintendent and Assistant

Superintendent to discuss personnel



OSSD Board
November 18, 2022
Page 3

Hannah Arias seconds
Unanimous vote to enter executive session

6:29 PM The board exited Executive Session

With no further business to discuss, a motion was made by Megan Sault and seconded by Katja
Evans to adjourn the meeting at 6:30 PM. Unanimous agreement to adjourn.

Respectfully submitted,

Heather Lawler



L. LAseuNesse

CONSTRUCTION, INC.
A Buliciny Congriator

P.O. Box 449
Fast Barre, VT. 05649
{802) 479-1078

Orange Southwest Supervisory Union November 7, 2022
24 Central Street
Randolph, VT. 05060

Atin: Bob Worley

-PROPOSAL-

PRIVATE CHANGING AREAS IN LOCKER ROOMS

2 Locker Rooms in High School, 2 Locker Rooms in Middle School
3 changing areas per locker room = 12 changing areas (4 ADA accessible, 8 regular)

Includes:
»  Remove existing lockers as necessary, dispose on site
*  Frame changing areas on existing floor with 2X4 spruce to be 7 high {open ceiling)
¢ [Install drywall finish taped and painted
*  Install vinyl base
= Install fabric curtain at access opening,
* Install bench and wall hooks in cach area
E
Exclusions.
» Electrical
¢  Plumbing / HVAC

Price for the above proposal = $ 34,060.00



%YV 691'L s [oLvez $ | we'sz $ | e69'02 $ | 66z'vz $ [ s8z'vz $ | viv'ez $ | szr'cz $ | juapmg 1ad jso) uopny
00°0L 00°0L 0001 L 00bL 0¥ 00'v1 0¥l Juswijosu3 pejosfold
%EY'Y 069°LL  $ S60°Y9Z $ sov'zsz $ 0£6°992 $ o0siore $ 166'6E€ $ 1£9°9Z¢ $ 88L'ZeE $ joBpng [gjog
%642 1Z¢ $ 2Ll $ So¥'LL $ 020°ZL $  056°€l $ | 009'cl $  009'€lL $ 09671 $ |
%6LT  ieE $ z€l1l $ Sov'Ll $ 02021 $ 056'€l $ | o09cl $ 009°€l $ 096yl $ SOAG UIWPY B |e2sid ASSO 0zse
%0L'9-  (089) $ 051t $ 1 0€8'LlL $ | oog'cz $  g69'cz $ | 80e'22 $ 18612 $ 59012 $ (Je1s 113 20A) UOnENSIUILPY 00¥e
S1S0) peayIsa)
%66t ev0'el $ eieIve $ 0/L'62e $ 0LLLET $ gegzoe $ £80'%0¢ $ 9Sr'E6Z $ €91'962 $ jabpng BupesadQ |ejo)
%00'0 - ¢ 0006 $ 0006 $ 0006 ¢ 0006 $ 0006 $ 0006 $ 0006 $ seolAleg buesunod £viz
%00°0 - $ 000'g $ 0008 $ 0008 $  000'¢ $ 0008 $ 000'Q $ 0008 $ sisindwog dul dinb3 J8yl0 002
%000 - $ 005 $ 005 $ 005 $ 00 $ 005 $ 005 $ 00S $ long|
%00°0 - $  000°} $ 0001 $ 000"} $ 0001 $  000°L $ 0001 $ 000°L $ alemyos
%00°0 - $ 005l $ 005} $ 0051 $ 005} $ 005t $ 00S'I $ 005'L $ s|edlpouad/s)oog
%000 - $ | 000'9L $ 0009l $ 00091 $ 0008l $ | 00081 $ 000'g) $ 000'8L $ salddng
aoo/sixa] /sieuse/sayddng 009
%000 - $ oov $ oor $ 00¥ $ ooF $ 00F $ oov $ 00¥ $ aoueinsu| Ajjiqen
- w - &. - % - m..u w.- m. - % sduelnsuy| uapng
= $ i | | | soueinsu| sng.
%00°0 - $ 0002 $ 000'C $ 058} $ 058l $ 0s8'L $ 058l $ 0s8'I $ sdu| pjaid/laaell 00
- & _ _
%00°0 - $ 000V $ 000v $ 000% $ 000'¢ $ 000'S $  000°¢ $ 000G $ |EJUaYy awdinb3
%00°0 S $ 000'€ $ 000'¢ $ 000°¢ $ 000°¢ $ 000'¢ $ 000¢ $ 000'¢ 3 wiepuredsy dinbg
%lESy  006'C ¢ 00L'O $ 00s'c $ o00s°¢ $  00g'9 $ 000G $  000'¢ $ 000G $ Bunespyauedoid
%62’ 1L 00 $ 00zZ'9 $ 006G $ 008'S $ | 00S°S $ o008'c $ 008'¢ $ oo08'c $ Awoupos|3
%00°0 - $ 005°L $ 005} $ o0zt $ 00s') $ 00S') $ 00S') $ 005°) $ auoydsja
- $ _ _ auouyd/saninnaesH
%000 - $ 009'ze $  009'ce $ 009ze $ | 009°ze $ 009'0¢ $ 0090 $ 00022 $ way  QoF
- % | _ | _
%00°0 - $ 000's $ o000's $ 000 $ 000G $ 000's $ 000's $  000'S $ AaQ Joid
%0L€L 00} $ o€ $ o0g9 $ 695 $ <98 $ 890°) $ 06 ¢ §S0°) $ dwioD sipopm
%00°0 : $ osg $ 0S¢ $ 0s€ $  00S $ 005 $ 00§ $ 005 $ su| JuawAojdwaun
%Ly 9l ¢ ogg $ ozce $ ozg $ szv $ oSt $ gev $ 0¥ $ su| Ayngesiq uua | -buo-
(oggL) ¢ - $ o09g'L $  0S€'l $ o0sgl $ 00€L $ - $ - $ uawalay SHISA,
%C96 Sl $ G6L') $ 080°) $ 088 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ | Wawaipey [edpunpy
%00'0 : $ og $ ot $ 0t $ gg $ S $ oS $ S $ adueInsu| 8y
%000 5 $ 018 $ 018 $ 018 $ 089t $ | 089°C $ s05'c $ gee'e $ suj [ejusq |
%629 0vs $ 085 $ ovo's $ 687 $ o0sl'0L $ S6PLL $ GI0°L) $ S00CL $ soxe) 1akodwy|
%e¥' 0l  0¢6'L $ OTh'8lL $ 00s'9L $ 0ll'LZ $ g8s'er $ | 099'6¢ $ 00s'o¢ $ 6809 $ sulyesH 002
%000 - $ o005l $ 005t $ 005'L $ o005t $ | 00S°L $ 005} $ 00S‘L $ ssinpsqng 0zl
%9¥'6 0SL'?  $ o0£L'22 $ 08502 $ | 5/8'61 $ - $ - $ 00504 $ S§S85°0L $ 31401 Aeegepy Gl
%000 E $ 008t $ 0081 $ 008l $ 008'L $ 008 $ 008t $ 008°L $ spuadis jsylo|
%99'G 296'r  $ 2£9'/8 $ 02028 $ geg'Lg $ 659'gEl $ Gzi'gvl $ 98p'zElL $ 0sz'eyl $ 314 0} s18yoes] | 00} 00z}
23Qq/ou| 29Q/ou| L ¥eaqg 196png 3ebpng j3abpng jafipng jobpng 196png :o_un_huwmn_. yelqo uonsung
jusalad  Jejiog vZ-£202 £2-2202 22-120T 12-0202 0Z-6102 61-810Z 81-L10Z

¥2-€202 1394n9g
‘N'TAVY

NOINM AHOSIAYIANS LSIMHLNOS IONVHO




Orange Southwest School District

Special Monitoring Report Form

Description of the item requiring Board approval: The OSSD Facilities is requesting the expenditure of
Carry Over/ Reserve funds from the Facilities Reserve Fund for emergency repair of the heating system at
RUHS & RTCC.

Reason for required approval including applicable policies: In accordance with Policy 2.4, the Board
must approve all expenditures of reserve funds.

Evidence demonstrating policy compliance (attach any necessary documents): The Orange Southwest
School District’s Facilities Reserve Funds have sufficient carryover/reserve funds to support the
expenditure requests. All requests are necessary to ensure our schools remain current and functional (Policy
2.6 Asset Protection).

Request for Facility Reserve funds of $150,000 for emergency repair of the RUHS & RTCC heating
system.

The Orange Southwest SD Facilities Reserve Fund has $3,364,012, therefore has sufficient funds to cover
the proposed expenditures.

Date:
12/08/2022 |




SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
December 14, 2022

RUHS/RTCC Heating Update
On Friday, November 11th, the system that provides heat to both RTCC and RUHS failed
requiring both schools to close due to our inability to maintain the required temperature for
occupancy. Further complicating the picture was the need to get enough heat flowing into the
building complex to prevent the plumbing from suffering damage due to freezing. The work

has been progressing through three phases, with the first two now complete.

Phase 1: Protecting the Complex from Further Damage

The facilities team was able to secure enough portable external propane heaters to get enough
heat flowing into the buildings to prevent most of the pipes from freezing. This was a
significant amount of work: securing the heating units from across the state, retrofitting
windows to accept the large diameter tubing that would carry the heated air, bringing in one-
thousand-gallon propane tanks to supply the fuel, securing traffic barriers to protect the
equipment, and then running the tubing carrying the hot air through the buildings so that the
heat could reach as many areas as possible. During this time, the team was also searching
across the country for the parts needed to repair the system and to secure qualified contractors

to do the actual work: mechanical, excavation, electrical, and plumbing.

Phase 2: Conducting the Repairs as Quickly as possible to Get students back to School

Students began missing school days on November 14%. The external propane heat after much
adjustment was able to maintain the required temperature in the smaller RTCC facility and
students there were able to return to classes on November 21%. Given the larger size of RUHS
and the sprawling nature of the facility, we were only able to maintain enough heat to keep
most of the pipes from freezing, so it would be December 5% before RUHS students could return

to school.



The major repairs were completed on December 1% and then it became a long process (nearly
three days) to refill the closed loop heating system with water and bleed out all the air so that
heat could flow throughout the RTCC/RUHS complex. On Sunday, December 4t, the repaired
heating system was running properly and maintaining the appropriate temperatures

throughout both buildings.

Phase 3: Finalizing Repairs and Clean Up

The district is in the final phase of the project. Currently the team has been disconnecting the
portable propane heaters and associated tubing. They are replacing the windows that needed
to be removed to allow the temporary heat to be pumped into the building. They have
arranged to the have the thousand-gallon propane tanks drained so that we can recoup the cost

of the remaining fuel and then have the tanks removed.

There were other issues discovered during the excavation that involve our underground
electrical wires and connections as well as a main pipe that delivers domestic hot water to the
two buildings. The censtruction site cannot be closed until both of these other systems have
been repaired.

Origin of the Problem and Further Complications
Approximately 25 years ago, the district received a grant to build an auxiliary wood chip fired
boiler to heat the RTCC/RUHS complex. It was manufactured and placed in a building behind
the high school by a specialty company that is no longer in business. At that time, the main oil-
fired burners were also moved to this building and integrated into a combined system — these

factor are important as they contributed to both the failure and the difficulty of repairs.

Cause of the Failure

The RTCC/RUHS complex is warmed by a forced hot water closed loop system. The water is
heated by the boilers and piped to the main building. It was the main pipe transporting the

water that failed. There are three reasons beyond simple age we can identify for this event:



o The pipe that failed was made of steel that is very susceptible to corrosion; for these
applications cast iron, stainless steel or various plastics are typically used because of
their corrosion resistance. Further, as the temperature rises, chemical reaction rates
increase; since this pipe carried hot water, the corrosion rate was accelerated.

e The location of the building required the pipe to be run under the back parking lot
which is frequently treated with road salt which leaches into the ground and further
accelerates the deterioration of the pipe from the outside in.

e  When the new facilities team took over during the first month of my tenure, they noticed
that that the water chemistry within the heating system was not being maintained and
immediately engaged the services of State Chem to do this work. Maintaining the
proper water chemistry is critical as it prevents both scale build up within the pipes and
corrosion. We have no evidence that this maintenance was being done prior to our time

which likely accelerated the corrosion failure from the inside out.

Why the Repairs Took So Long

The integration of the fuel oil and wood chip boiler systems was performed by a specialty
company that had used proprietary pipes and connectors in their work. With the company out
of business, replacement parts were unavailable, and being non-standard would need to be
fabricated from scratch. The team was directed to “scour the planet” for the parts or any
construction outfit that could accelerate the repair beyond the initial three-month estimate. A
company was found that had access to existing parts that they could modify for our need and

who was able to complete the majority of the repair within three weeks.

Other Issues Revealed and Current Costs

During the excavation, two other problems were revealed which have received temporary
repairs in order to get the heating system up and running as quickly as possible so students
could return to school. First, the wires and connectors supplying electricity to the heating
system were protected by a steel conduit with has corroded away and needs to be replaced

(with a plastic conduit). Second, the boilers also supply domestic hot water to the RTCC/RUHS



facility, the main water supply pipe also needs to be fully replaced. The permanent repairs are
scheduled to occur during school vacation. Once they are complete, the back parking lot can be
repaired.

¢ Total Cost of Repairs so far: $285,000

o Estimated cost of remaining repairs (electrical, domestic hot water, paving): $150,000
We will be seeking approval for the $150,000 from the facilities’ reserve fund at the December

14* School Board Meeting.

Final Thoughts

It is always easier to see potential problems in hindsight, so this is not intended to be a criticism
but thoughts that might be of value going forward.

e Had the main fuel oil boilers been left in place inside the RUHS building and not moved
and integrated with the wood fired boiler, the school would have had two independent
heating systems. In this scenario, turning two simple valves would separate one system
from the other and allow them to operate independently — ensuring heat to the building
if one system failed. Integrating the two systems was a poor choice because as we have
discovered — if one fails, the other is taken offline as well.

¢ The use of steel pipes and running them underground in an area of extensive road salt
use was a very poor engineering choice destined to cause a catastrophic failure.

e Itis critical that anyone hired into the role of a facilities manager receive proper training
in the upkeep of physical assets to include at a minimum, the functionality and
maintenance of building systems, occupant safety, and meeting legal requirements.

¢  When replacing or upgrading building systems, the focus should be on standard as
opposed to specialty equipment to ensure replacement parts are plentiful, easy to find,
and will be manufactured long into the future. Further, so that repair services can be
provided by any normally trained technician. This will guarantee that needed repairs,
even those required due to a catastrophic failure, can be completed quickly and at

minimal cost.



ORANGE SOUTHWEST SCHOOL DISTRICT

2022-23 SUMMARY

202122  NOVEMBER 2021; ~  2022-23  NOVEMBER 2022

ACTUAL YTD BUDGET YTD DIFFERENCE
GENERAL FUND
REVENUE:
LOCAL REVENUE 1,198,868 152,167 i 1,071,912 311,426 -760,486
SPECIAL PROGRAMS 2,086,380 4963441 2,120,149 595,153  -1,524,996
STATE REVENUES 16,069,870 1,781,884 17,350,584 7,000,020  -10,251,555
BEGINNING BALANCE: 826,342 826,321 746,171 746,171 0
TOTAL REVENUE 20,181,459 3,256,737 21,288,816 8,751,779 -12,537,037
EXPENDITURES: o
INSTRUCTION 7,188,933 1,388,899 8,127,344 2,058,830 6,068,514
SPECIAL EDUCATION 3,360,191 675,530 3,995,922 1,004,846 2,991,076
ADMINISTRATION 1,210,574 370,362 1,352,596 481,646 870,950
CENTRAL OFFICE 665,013 225,220 899,455 377,102 522,354
SUPPORT SERVICES 1,564,167 449,244 1,895,527 632,251 1,263,276
MAINTENANCE 2,264,524 551,063 2,169,745 814,703 1,355,042
TECHNOLOGY 555,199 253,991 728,215 243,305 484,910
TRANSPORTATION 600,188 122,835 648,277 115,315 532,962
OTHER EXPENSES 90,011 31,330 126,409 27,081 99,328
TECHNICAL EDUCATION 863,221 1,189 928,674 3,788 924,886
PRE-SCHOOL 356,655 84,666 416,652 138,392 278,260
SCHOOL TOTAL: 18,727,675 4,154,329 21,288,816 5,897,258 14,188,412
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,727,675 4154329 21,288,816 5,897,258 15,391,558

71/2022
OTHER FUNDS BEG BAL REVENUE EXPENDED _ BALANCE
TRANSFER FUND 416,966 2,821,878 171,692 3,067,152
TITLE 1 0 7,327 7,272 56
EPSDT FUNDS 62,100 13,278 4,037 71,341
FOOD SERVICE 124,015 6,759 183,075 -52,301
MEDICAID FUNDS 623,516 32,562 47,576 608,502
RAVEN. 0 66,708 40,630 26,078
IDEA-B - FLOW-THROUGH 0 27,112 79,743 -52,631
IDEA-B - PRE-SCHOOL 0 1,154 2,051 -896
VEHICLE/BUS FUND 1,126,335 0 258,811 867,524
BUILDING MAINT FUND 3,364,012 0 79,688 3,284,324
LEGAL FUND 90,000 0 0 90,000
SPECIAL EDUCATION FUND 465,697 0 0 465,697
OPERATIONAL RESERVE 1,743,007 0 15,600 1,727,407
ESSENTIAL EARLY ED 43,426 0 0 43,426
AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM 21,522 10,141 17,934 13,729
STANDARDS BOARD 0 0 0 0
SUMMER FEEDING 0 5,730 5,940 -210
SCHOOL WIDE PROGRAMS 0 0 89,548 -89,548
TITLE Il 0 31,001 43,165 -12,164
TITLE IV 0 32,168 38,841 -6,673
CONSOLIDATED ADMIN 0 0 10,897 -10,897
CRF - LEA GRANT 0 0 0 0
CRF - ESSER GRANT 0 10,260 89 10,171
ESSER Il GRANT 0 431,652 439,877 -8,225
ARP - ESSER 0 298,789 401,093 -102,304
ARP - AFTERSCHOOL 3,139 2,696 209 5,625
ARP - PRESCHOOL 19,296 15,972 7,245 28,023
ARP - IDEA-B PRE-SCHOOL 0 0 0 0
ARP - IDEA-B 0 3,793 3,793 0
TOTAL OTHER FUNDS 8,103,031 3,818,980 1,948,806 9,973,206



ORANGE SOUTHWEST SCHOOL DISTRICT - REVENUE

2021-22 November 2021 2022-23 November 2022 Under
Actual Revenue: Budget Revenue (Over)

Account Name 5

LOCAL REVENUES: :

Tuition 465,465 126,646! 348,000 140,168 -207,832
Overhead Tuition 54,744 4 20,000 0 -20,000
Transportation 38,314 50,000 13,535 -36,465
Interest 87,025 85,000 35,261 -49,739
Early Ed Receipts 0 0 522 522
Lease Land - Brookfield 0 5 0 -5
Secretary of State - Town Meeting 0 0 0 0
Contracted Services 27,685 35,292 0 -35,292
0OSSU - Maint & Tech Contracted Svc 0 0 0 0
RTCC - Shared Services 463,133 487,760 121,940 -365,820
Admin Svcs - EPSDT 3,294 1,500 0 -1,500
Admin Svcs - VIP 0 V] 0 0
Admin Svcs - RAVEN 46,550 44,005 0 -44,005
Rental Income 0 350 0 -350
SWP - Salary Reimb 0 0 0 0
Prior Year Refunds 12,658 0 0 0
Total Other Revenues: 1,198,868 281,11 1,071,912 311,426 -760,486
SPECIAL ED: s

Core Block Grant 368,860 184,4300 0 0 0
Special Ed Reimbursement 1,379,262 274,250§ 1,426,162 548,522 -877,640
State Placed Students 0 0! 0 0 0
Extraordinary Reimbursement 212,695 0! 601,338 0 -601,338
Essential Early Ed 75,327 37,664 : 80,649 46,631 -34,018
IDEA-B - Pre-School 20,045 0l 0 0 0
IDEA-B 0 0 0 0 0
Excess Costs Reimbursement 30,191 0i 12,000 0 -12,000
Total Special Ed 2,086,380 496,344 2,120,149 595,153 -1,524,996
STATE REVENUES:

State Technical Centers 449,273 0: 483,574 0 -483,574
State Education Fund 15,159,988 6,567,367 16,430,804 7,039,793 -9,391,011
Health Care Recapture 0 0 0 0
State Unenrolled Residents at Tech 6,895 0 0 0
State Transportation 272,292 255,000 0 -255,000
Small Schools Grant 177,706 59,23 177,706 59,236 -118,470
Driver Education 3,716 ; 3,500 0 -3,500
Total State Revenues 16,069,870 6,626,603: 17,350,584 7,099,029 -10,251,555
BEGINNING BALANCE: 826,342 826,3425 746,171 746,171 0
SCHOOL TOTAL: 20,181,459 8,230,403 21,288,816 8,751,779 -12,537,037
FEDERAL FUNDS:

IDEA - B 0 0: 202,846 0 202,846
IDEA - B - PreSchool 0 0: 143,632 0 143,632
Title | and 1l - School Wide 0 0: 415,000 0 415,000
Medicaid 0 0: 95,000 0 95,000
EPSDT 0 20,000 0 20,000
Total Federal Funds 0 0: 876,478 0 876,478
TOTAL VOTER APPROVAL: 20,181,459 8,230,403 22,165,294 8,751,779 -11,660,559



ORANGE SOUTHWEST SCHOOL DISTRICT -

EXPENDITURES
2021-22 November 2021 2022-23 November 2022 Balance
Actual Expenditur Budget Expenditure Encumb Under Percent

Account Name {Over) Inc/Dec
INSTRUCTION:
Salaries 4,513,108 1,146,209 4,896,410 1,196,489 0 4,828,377 98.61%
Benefits 1,597,325 487,118 1,877,885 481,648 0 1,396,237 74.35%
Drivers Education 4,130 1,065; 3,500 142 891 2,468 70.51%
Remedialfinterventionist Service 133,362 37,743% 207,204 43,930 0 163,274 78.80%
Testing/TutoriallOT-PT Svcs 10,264 3,435; 13,775 5,329 9,888 -1,442 -10.47%
Contracted Services 45,496 14,607 44,400 16,697 0 27,703 62.40%
Staff Training 184,126 70,052 210,797 71,900 86,664 52,234 24.78%
Co/Extra Curricular 319,929 96,429 443,753 113,491 92,841 237,421 53.50%
Tuition 67,041 26,692; 54,000 33,658 4,500 15,842 29.34%
Travel/Field Trips 14,292 1,426 40,280 6,174 2,031 32,076 79.63%
Supplies/Textbooks/Equip 299,860 75,554 335,340 89,372 36,022 209,946 62.61%
Total Instruction 7,188,933 1,960,330 8,127,344 2,058,830 232,836 6,964,134 85.69%
SPECIAL EDUCATION: =
Salaries 1,579,959 432,123 1,729,595 399,552 0 1,330,043 76.90%
Benefits 552,787 186,6421 688,205 181,011 0 507,194 73.70%
Contracted/Prof Services 5,000 0i " 0 0 0 0
Transportation 82,101 9,723; | 89,350 16,906 0 72,444 81.08%
Travel/Conferences 13,658 952: 10,500 6,994 3,646 -140 -1.33%
Supplies/Textbooks/Equipment 21,156 17,185} 26,700 10,730 1,724 14,246 53.36%
Tuition 509,396 177,100: 840,000 234,946 0 605,054 72.03%
Behavioral Services 167,892 20,416% 198,817 19,309 179,508 90.29%
Testing/Tutorial/OT-PT Svecs 220,905 64,849 139,000 66,376 86,159 -13,535 -9.74%
Speech Services 216,337 49432 273,755 69,022 114,297 90,435 33.04%
Total Special Education 3,369,191 958,424 3,995,922 1,004,846 205,826 2,785,250 69.70%
ADMINISTRATION:
Salaries 860,389 341,703 892,932 342,460 0 550,472 61.65%
Benefits 288,640 102,052 : 366,439 110,548 0 255,891 69.83%
Repairs/Maint 779 80! 9,000 0 0 9,000 100.00%
Postage/Telephone 29,894 11,751 32,700 11,136 100 21,464 65.64%
Travel 13,621 6,071 9,300 7,085 11,105 -8,891 -95.60%
Supplies/Equipment 17,252 9,097 : 42,225 10,416 1,439 30,370 71.92%
Total Administration 1,210,574 470,755 1,352,596 481,646 12,644 858,306 63.46%
CENTRAL OFFICE: £
Salaries 412,234 172,563 548,250 227,864 0 320,386 58.44%
Benefits 177,361 70,389 250,055 78,914 0 171,141 68.44%
Contracted Services 29,038 10,450 26,000 8,580 11,275 6,145 23.63%
Legal Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0
Staff Development 755 0: 2,000 9,144 0 -7,144  -357.20%
Repairs/Maintenance 18,377 18,377 17,500 19,296 0 -1,796 -10.26%
Board Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0
Building Construction 0 0 0 0 0 0
Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0
Travel 949 172 5,900 4,052 500 1,348 22.85%
Supplies/Equipment 26,299 13,330 49,750 29,252 127 20,371 40.95%
Total Central Office 665,013 285,281 899,455 377,102 11,902 510,452 56.75%
SUPPORT SERVICES:
Guidance 472,490 131,930 518,574 141,112 10,735 366,727 70.72%
Behavioral Interventionists 290,841 108,431 302,638 84,208 454 217,976 72.03%
School Nurse 269,269 74,009 329,824 88,737 957 240,130 72.81%
Media Services 259,544 74,589 318,141 80,301 8,537 229,304 72.08%
Curriculum Develop 38,879 25,067 30,555 787 0 20,768 97.42%
CAR. 40,221 9,976: 113,500 55,210 26,148 32,142 28.32%
Teacher Mentoring 52,180 10,219 46,800 18,344 50,983 -22,5627 -48.13%
Board of Education 101,559 133,595 100,495 149,588 5,652 -54,744 -54.47%

Legal Fees 18,515 5,018 53,000 13,964 0 39,036 73.65%
Fiscal Services 20,669 -2,648: 82,000 0 0 82,000 100.00%
Total Support Services 1,564,167 570,186 1,895,527 632,251 103,466 1,159,810 61.19%
MAINTENANCE:
Salaries 589,297 219,960 539,020 245,490 1] 293,530 54.46%
Benefits 280,443 87,131¢ 310,000 91,455 0 218,545 70.50%
Contracted Services 190,655 55,048 : 225,000 62,944 90,270 71,787 31.91%
General Liability Ins 64,461 64,461 69,200 73,756 0 -4,556 -6.58%
Repairs/Maintenance 303,875 98,883 230,000 109,948 96,002 24,049 10.46%
Utilities 424,138 86,535 405,250 104,430 0 300,820 74.23%
Supplies/Travel/Equipment 241,590 56,852 224,750 83,737 31,395 109,618 48.77%
Care of Grounds 148,183 31,347 147,000 34,928 73,250 38,821 26.41%
Reserve - Repairs/Maint 0 0 0 0 0 0
Vehicle Services 21,882 7,524 19,525 8,013 8,020 3,492 17.88%
Total Maintenance Svcs 2,264,524 707,741 ; 2,169,745 814,703 298,937 1,056,106 48.67%



ORANGE SOUTHWEST SCHOOL DISTRICT -

EXPENDITURES

2021-22 November 2021 2022-23 November 2022 Balance

Actual Expenditure Budget Expenditure Encumb Under Percent
Account Name {Over) Inc/Dec
TECHNOLOGY:
Salaries 252,528 103,154 313,920 108,453 0 205,467 65.45%
Benefits 97,520 145,985 35,046 0 110,939 75.99%
Contracted Services 44,845 24,500 7,630 6,215 10,655 43.49%
Technology Fund Transfer 0 108,500 0 0 108,500 100.00%
Repairs/Maintenance 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 100.00%
Supplies 160,307 132,810 92,176 12,105 28,528 21.48%
Equipment 0 0 0 0 0
Total Technology 555,199 728,215 243,305 18,320 466,589 64.07%
TRANSPORTATION:
Salaries 235,971 245,081 76,064 0 169,017 68.96%
Benefits 45,189 51,863 12,250 0 39,613 76.38%
Contracted Sves/Rent 67,986 66,785 -6,462 0 73,247 109.68%
Travel/Conferences 0 100 0 0 100 100.00%
Repairs/Supplies/Equip 43,215 55,300 21,128 1,419 32,752 59.23%
Diesel Fuel 59,500 59,500 0 0 59,500 100.00%
Unallowed Spec Ed 0 0 0 0 0
COVID-18- Food Delivery 0 4] 0 0 0
Field Trips 9,855 25,118 2,829 0 22,289 88.74%
Tuition Student Transportation 38,472 44 530 9,505 16,989 18,036 40.50%
Bus Fund Reserve 100,000 100,000 0 0 100,000 100.00%
Total Transportation 600,188 648,277 115,315 18,408 514,554 79.37%
OTHER EXPENDITURES:
Food Service Transfer 0 35,000 0 0 35,000 100.00%
Operational Fund Transfer 0 0 0 0 0
Special Ed Transfer 0 0 0 0 0
Child Care - COVID-19 0 0 0 0 0
Debt Service 16,353 10,760 10,080 0 680 6.32%
EEE Services 73,658 80,649 17,001 25,607 38,041 47.17%
Total Other Expenditures 90,011 126,409 27,081 25,607 73,722 58.32%
TECHNICAL EDUCATION:
State - Act 68 449,273 483,574 0 0 483,574 100.00%
Local Tuition 413,948 413,948 445,100 3,788 0 441,312 99.156%
Total Tech Education 863,221 413,948 928,674 3,788 0 924,886 99.59%
PRE-SCHOOL
Salaries 225,443 68,638 229,635 68,033 0 161,602 70.37%
Benefits 93,922 27,993 118,042 38,044 0 79,998 67.77%
Administration 0 0 0 19,614 26,649 -46,263
Tuition/Partnerships 22,783 4,950 39,400 8,306 0 31,094 78.92%
Supplies/Travel/Equip 14,507 14,147 29,575 4,395 2,128 23,052 77.94%
Total Pre-School 356,655 115,728 416,652 138,392 28,778 249,483 59.88%
SUPRLUS/DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0 0
SCHOOL TOTAL: 18,727,675 5,963,879 21,288,816 5,897,258 956,723 15,563,291 73.11%
FEDERAL FUNDS:
IDEA - B 0 0 202,846 0 0 202,846
IDEA - B - PreSchool 0 0 143,632 0 0 143,632
Title I and Il - School Wide 0 0! 415,000 0 0 415,000
Medicaid 0 0 95,000 0 0 95,000
EPSDT 0 0 20,000 0 0 20,000
Total Federal Funds 0 0 876,478 0 0 876,478
TOTAL VOTER APPROVAL: 18,727,675 22,165,294 5,897,258 956,723 16,439,769 74.17%




